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Mr. Chung Chong Sun
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Cayman Islands
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the PRC
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Definitions

S

“2023 Same Period”
[2023FE A A

“Annual General Meeting”
MERBFRE]

“Articles of Association”
A =24

“associate”

R} YN

“Auditor”
2 & lill

“Audit Committee”
EZEEE)

“Board”
lEE5g)

“Board Committees”

“CG Code”
Mb2EEASTE]

“Chief Executive Officer”
MTEAEEL

“CIA”
esEE (o

“CNC”
e [ 4k 7

“Company” or “our Company “

/NN
“Director(s)”
rE=)

“Global Offering”
2IREE

“Group”
=Sy ETY

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F12H31H L FE

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,

5 June 2025

R 1t20255F6A5H (BHIMD) RITHNEERRBEARS

the articles of association of the Company

KATEBERRAL

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BA(ETRA) BT ZANRE

Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company
P/NETE R S Tk S T S

the audit committee of the Company

KAREBIZEESR

the board of Directors of the Company

KRBEFE

collectively, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee

ERZEE HFNEEERRELEETHMRTE

the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

(EMARA) WERCIPrEi R E ER TR

the chief executive officer of the Company

RRETEABH

the China Index Academy
FREIHEERBA TPt

China New City Group Limited
FEFIE T EEBRAS

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited (R ZEEEEZRSERAT),

an

exempted company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
16 November 2020, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange (stock code: 2271)

REBELERSABRAT —RIN2020F11B16BEHEH S M IsIE

HeAREERR ERHON

the director(s) of the Company

KTRBEF

44 X

Y 2K

FrEtr £ BRMHARSE : 2271)

the initial public offering of the Company

KRB ERAREE

the Company and all of its subsidiaries

RRB RHEEELHE AR

2024 Annual Report



“HK$”
&t

“HKICPA”
rEREMAE)

“Hong Kong”
&4

“Ideal World”
l'ldeal World |

“IFRSs”
MBI PR R B3 5 22 1

“Listing Date”
r = BHA)

“Listing Rules’
FERA

“Model Code”
F{RRAE<F R ).

“Mr. Shi”
Biibes

q

“Nomination Committee’
NEw&EE)

“Over-allotment Option”
NEBREAC A

“PRC”
MR

“Prospectus”
B ERBAE

“Remaining Group”
Mk N EEE)

“Remuneration Committee”
IFNEZE )

“Reporting Period”
TR & HRRE

“‘RMB”
TAR®)

“SEO?

(e R HAE R ).

Definitions (Continued)

EE (8

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEREERBET

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BEHEGSEAY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREEBRFIITHRE

Ideal World Investments Limited
Ideal World Investments Limited

the International Financial Reporting Standards
B PR B 75 3 5 2E R

18 July 2023
2023F7H18H

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
W22 PREE 5 EARAY

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(LHETAEZIETIRESFXZHNRETA)

Mr. Shi Zhongan (alias Shi Kancheng)
M2 (AT AR)

the nomination committee of the Company
EN/NSIE e =

the over-allotment option as described in the Prospectus
B ER BAE PR i AV EB BB T AR 1

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARENE iAREMS > AEEEE - PEIRFISHIITHR KRG E

the prospectus of the Company dated 30 June 2023
RRF2023F6 5308 B IRRIAE

CNC, together with Zhong An Group
FEMIE T ER R ER

the remuneration committee of the Company
KRBFHNEES

the year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024FE12H31HILEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
RENEEGARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEER BN E (RS RIBERG)  KTREET - MRl H 5 Bk

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR
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Definitions (Continued)

B (8

“Share(s)”
M5

“Shareholder(s)”
MG =R

“Stock Exchange”
TH 32 PR

“subsidiary(ies)”
Sy NS

“substantial shareholder(s)”

TRARER)

“Whole Good”
r247 )

“Zhong An”
MRZ

“Zhong An BVI”
MR ZBVI

“Zhong An Group”
IR EE)

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the

Company
1 ARERAPEREECOTETZEBR

shareholders of the Company
B ARERE

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
s BEBHMEXSAARAE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

B BA(ETRADETZANEE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

5 BA(ETRADEFZANERE

Whole Good Management Limited
B Z2FBEEBRAA

Zhong An Group Limited
B RLERBRRF

Zhong An Service Holding Limited
B RERGEREBERRAF

Zhong An and its subsidiaries
B RERENBAF

2024 Annual Report



Financial Highlights

MR E

For the year ended
31 December

HE12B31HLEEFE
2024 2023 Change
20245 20234 e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREFIT ANEEFT
Revenue LON 412,238 351,133 +17.40%
Gross profit EH] 120,282 118,814 +1.24%
Profit for the year AEEGEH] 37,341 49,424 -24.45%
Profit attributable to owners FABEE AEHEF
of the parent 38,067 49,346 -22.86%
Earnings per share attributable to BRFEBRRERE ARG
ordinary equity holders of the parent FREHN
- Basic and diluted —BARRKE#E RMB7.4 RMB11.2
cents cents
AR¥147 ARE1129
As at 31 December
®12831H
2024 2023 Change
20245 20234 BE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARHEFT ANEETFT
Total assets WEE 469,846 410,085 +14.57%
Net assets FEE 299,343 274,756 +8.95%
Net assets value per share BREEFE RMBO0.58 RMBO0.53 +9.43%
ARK#0.58T ARM0.537T
REEBEERSERAT ZTTINFEER
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited and its subsidiaries, |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Since the listing of Zhong An in November 2007 on the Stock Exchange, the
Company is the second subsidiary of Zhong An to be successfully listed on
the Stock Exchange through the spin-off. The first subsidiary of Zhong An
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange by way of spin-off was CNC. The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
18 July 2028. Zhong An and its subsidiaries have thus become a large-
scale enterprise group with listed companies in real estate, commercial and
property sectors in Zhejiang Province, China.

In 2024, the Group’s revenue was approximately RMB412.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 17.4% as compared with
approximately RMB351.1 million in the same period in 2023. As of 31
December 2024, the Group had 17 new projects under management,
representing an increase of approximately 15.0%, and an additional area
under management of approximately 3.6 million sq. m., representing an
increase of approximately 21.7%.

As a comprehensive property service provider with deep roots in the
Yangtze River Delta, the Group has been focusing on customer satisfaction
for many years. It is committed to understanding customer needs, striving
for excellence in services, and building a comprehensive service system
under the “Zhong An Intelligent” brand. In the past year, while strengthening
basic services, the Group has continued to expand its chain and business
to provide many value-added services such as housekeeping, retail, home
decoration and asset operations. It has continuously won the trust of
customers with its high-quality services, and its area under management,
expansion volume, revenue, and cash flow have all increased to a certain
extent.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

According to CIA, the Group has been included in the list of the Top 100
Property Management Companies in China (47 E¥) £ BR 75 & 52 1 %) since
2016 and our ranking rose from 82nd in 2016 to 37th in 2024, reflecting
the Group’s growing property management capabilities and comprehensive
strength.

Over the course of the Group’s development, in addition to the efforts in
managing residential property projects, we also focused on non-residential
property projects comprising primarily commercial and office buildings,
serviced apartments, industrial parks, public and other properties (such as
office buildings of PRC governmental bodies, industrial parks, hospitals,
schools and parks). The management of the Group believes that the
development of our non-residential property projects portfolio would enable
the Group to provide more personalized and professional service offerings
and enhance its service standards, which would in turn allow the Group
to provide our customers with better quality services and elevate the
Group’s brand reputation and image. Meanwhile, we are actively developing
new models for business expansion. Through strategic cooperation with
enterprises under the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission, we lay the foundation for business growth. By providing
consulting services to small and medium-sized enterprises, we explore new
growth opportunities of the operational business.

EEHRS (@)

RIBPIERZER  KEEB2016F_EE
BRMATEYERBEREED A
2016 Y5821 £ FH E2024FAYFE371L
J2 Bk HH 7 £ B B9 ) 2k B IR AE ) A 1R T L
RARE B NEE -

BAREEERMR FRTEEEETYESR
EHEEHE NN REEREHIFEETY
BB HPIZOEEERBAE RS
XAB EXE AHBAKAEMYZE (F)
MABEBFHERBAZRAE - TEXEE B
i 2RRAE ~AEEREEEMRE ERE
FFETYHEECERRBEAEERENREMH
FEEMKREXENRBED LRSEEER
BIBRTSKEE > feMEAEERE FIRHEELF
BERS  LRAREENREEE LT
RoMRILER > HFIBEIRFEEEFILRNE
I BREEESEREENBESIFE &
EEFRRER  BBRST/NEEREH-ES
AR RSB B IOV RE -

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ERHRS (@)

During the Reporting Period, the Group has always adhered to “providing
better services to homeowners” as the Group’s business goal. We have
improved and optimized the product line system and operation management
system, and promoted management and service standardization. In terms
of service quality, we have established strict service standards and achieved
their visualization through the production of standardized videos and pocket
guides. At the same time, we have strengthened employee training to
enhance the standardization of services. Meanwhile, we have implemented
our dual initiatives of “Quality Supervision Officer” and “General Manager
Reception Day,” complemented by four supporting programs namely
“Listening Quality Improvement Month”, “Happy Labor Day”, “Doing One
Thing for Our Residents”, and “Four Seasons at Home” to establish core
brand standards, aiming to empower the front line through management,
better understand the actual needs of customers, and accurately improve the
service quality of each project, thereby improving customer satisfaction.

In terms of smart services, the Group has continued to promote smart fire
protection, smart security, and smart access systems, as well as devices
such as sweeping robots and delivery robots, thereby providing more
convenient and efficient integrated services to meet customer needs.
In 2024, the Group officially established an intelligent service platform,
integrating smart fire protection systems, smart security systems, smart
access systems, as well as online reporting and repair services, to further
advance intelligent management and services. At the same time, efforts
were made to gradually increase the adoption rate of intelligent robots in
fundamental property services. Currently, sweeping robots, delivery robots,
and similar devices have been put into service in multiple projects. At the
same time, in order to cater to the needs of homeowners more accurately,
on the value-added service side, we have diversified into offerings such
as retail-to-home, housekeeping services, car washing and beautification
services, and home renovation and decoration services. In 2024, we
introduced new pet services, further enhancing the “Last Kilometer” initiative
and building a diversified, one-stop community service ecosystem to make
the lives of homeowners more convenient and efficient. The Group has also
continued to explore and research business development in multiple new
areas, and formulated multiple new business tracks based on business
needs and the Company’s development direction, which will be gradually
implemented in future development. The Group endeavored to understand
the needs of our customers, refine our services and build an all-rounded
service system under the “Zhong An Intelligent Living” brand.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

Through precise control of corporate development by the Company’s senior
management and the efforts of all employees of the Company, the Group
once again secured numerous accolades, including being ranked among
the 2024 Top 50 Integrated Strength Property Management Companies in
China, placed 36th in the 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China, recognized as the 2024 Leading Chinese Company in Property
Service Quality, and listed among the 2024 Top 100 Property High Quality
Service Providers in China. Additionally, the Group earned titles such as the
2024 Growth Leading Enterprise of China Property Service Enterprises, 2024
Annual Property Service Enterprise with Sense of Social Responsibility in
China, 2024 Top 100 China Property Management Companies in terms of
Brand Influence, and 2024 Leading Intelligent Property Services Company in
China. During the same year, the Group also obtained the Enterprise Integrity
Management System Certification.

Looking ahead, Zhong An Intelligent Living will continue to establish its
strategic foundation on “returning to the essence of services and reshaping
the quality-price matching system” and adhere to the operational philosophy
of “creating value through services”. By building the “two primary and
four auxiliary” core brand standards, the Group aims to precisely identify
homeowners’ core needs and enhance customer satisfaction. In response
to the profound transformations within the property industry, the Group will
continuously consolidate its leading position in the industry, thereby achieving
a transformative upgrade from a traditional property service provider to a
trusted intelligent lifestyle service provider.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, investors, customers and suppliers,
and to all employees for their contribution and hard work, and we will
wholeheartedly create the greatest value and achieve the best returns for
Shareholders and investors.

Shi Zhongan
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 27 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERADR

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the listing of Zhong An in November 2007 on the Stock Exchange, the
Company is the second subsidiary of Zhong An to be successfully listed on
the Stock Exchange through the spin-off. The first subsidiary of Zhong An
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange by way of spin-off was CNC. The
Company has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 18
July 2023.

The Group is a reputable integrated property management service provider
headquartered in Hangzhou with deep roots in Zhejiang province and the
Yangtze River Delta Region. Through over 25 years of operations since
our establishment in 1998, the Group has grown from a local property
management service provider in Hangzhou to an integrated regional property
management service provider with a major presence in Zhejiang province.

According to China Index Academy, the Group has been listed on the list
of the Top 100 Property Management Companies in China (FFE#) 2 AR
BB %) since 2016 and our ranking among the Top 100 Property
Management Companies in China rose from 82nd in 2016 to 37th in 2024,
reflecting the Group’s growing property management capabilities and overall
strength.

In 2024, the Group once again secured numerous accolades, including being
ranked among the 2024 Top 50 Integrated Strength Property Management
Companies in China, placed 36th in the 2024 Top 100 Property
Management Companies in China, recognized as the 2024 Leading Chinese
Company in Property Service Quality, and listed among the 2024 Top 100
Property High Quality Service Providers in China. Additionally, the Group
earned titles such as the 2024 Growth Leading Enterprise of China Property
Service Enterprises, 2024 Annual Property Service Enterprise with Sense of
Social Responsibility in China, 2024 Top 100 China Property Management
Companies in terms of Brand Influence, and 2024 Leading Intelligent
Property Services Company in China. During the same year, the Group also
obtained the Enterprise Integrity Management System Certification.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 145 contracted projects
with a contracted area of approximately 21.75 million sg.m., covering 21
cities and eight provinces in China. As of 31 December 2024, the Group
had 130 projects under management, with area under management of
approximately 20.00 million sg.m., covering 20 cities and seven provinces in
China.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following table sets forth the revenue from property management
services and GFA under management by types of property for the years
indicated:

EEEwmE DT (8)

TREVBEMTEERYERRE DM
MEEERBBAKRTERRERE !

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 20235
Number of  GFA under Number of ~ GFA under
projects management Revenue Percentage projects  management Revenue  Percentage
B TEREER WA 1tk HE TERERE N fhLt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (sq.m000)  (RMB'000) (%)

(FFG#) AEHFT)

(FFrA) (AREF7)

Residential properties ~ (E#% 117 18,262 269,444 77.6% 87 13,864 182,859 70.0%
Non-residential FEENE

properties 13 1,736 71,774 22.4% 26 2,563 78,341 30.0%
Total 45t 130 19,998 347,218 100.0% 113 16,427 261,200 100.0%

Benefitting from the Long-term Support of the
Remaining Group whilst Expanding Our Business to
Independent Third-Party Customers

Zhong An is one of the leading real estate developers in the Yangtze River
Delta Region, whilst the Remaining Group is a major commercial property
developer in the Yangtze River Delta Region. Their development projects
include residential properties, commercial complexes, hotels and other
properties. As of 31 December 2024, to the best knowledge of the Group
after consulting the Remaining Group, it had about 23 property projects
under development or held for development in the PRC, with a total GFA of
approximately 4.9 milion sg.m. Among the projects mentioned above, we
have obtained service agreements in respect of 13 property projects with a
total GFA of approximately 2.4 million sg.m. as of 31 December 2024.

RERF TEBNRASE [
R EFANEHEEREAERIL
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwED T (8)

Diversified Service Offerings and Revenue Streams
Balanced our Business Development

Over the course of the Group’s development, in addition to the efforts in
managing residential property projects, we also focused on non-residential
property projects comprising primarily commercial and office buildings,
serviced apartments, industrial parks, public and other properties (such as
office buildings of PRC governmental bodies, hospitals, schools and parks).
The management of the Group believes that the development of our non-
residential property projects portfolio would enable the Group to provide
more personalized and professional service offerings and enhance its service
standards, which would in turn allow the Group to provide our customers
with better quality services and elevate the Group’s brand reputation and
image. Meanwhile, we are actively developing new models for business
expansion. Through strategic cooperation with enterprises under the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, we lay the
foundation for business growth. By providing consulting services to small
and medium-sized enterprises, we explore new growth opportunities of the
operational business.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has always adhered to “providing
better services to homeowners” as the Group’s business goal. We have
improved and optimized the product line system and operation management
system, and promoted management and service standardization. In terms
of service quality, we have established strict service standards and achieved
their visualization through the production of standardized videos and pocket
guides. At the same time, we have strengthened employee training to
enhance the standardization of services. Meanwhile, we have implemented
our dual initiatives of “Quality Supervision Officer” and “General Manager
Reception Day,” complemented by four supporting programs namely
“Listening Quality Improvement Month”, “Happy Labor Day”, “Doing One
Thing for Our Residents”, and “Four Seasons at Home” to establish core
brand standards, aiming to empower the front line through management,
better understand the actual needs of customers, and accurately improve
the service quality of each project, thereby improving customer satisfaction.
In terms of smart services, the Group has continued to promote smart fire
protection, smart security, and smart access systems, as well as devices
such as sweeping robots and delivery robots, thereby providing more
convenient and efficient integrated services to meet customer needs.
In 2024, the Group officially established an intelligent service platform,
integrating smart fire protection systems, smart security systems, smart
access systems, as well as online reporting and repair services, to further
advance intelligent management and services. At the same time, efforts
were made to gradually increase the adoption rate of intelligent robots in
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

fundamental property services. Currently, sweeping robots, delivery robots,
and similar devices have been put into service in multiple projects. At the
same time, in order to cater to the needs of homeowners more accurately,
on the value-added service side, we have diversified into offerings such
as retail-to-home, housekeeping services, car washing and beautification
services, and home renovation and decoration services. In 2024, we
introduced new pet services, further enhancing the “Last-mile” initiative and
building a diversified, one-stop community service ecosystem to make the
lives of homeowners more convenient and efficient. The Group has also
continued to explore business development in multiple new areas, and
formulated multiple new business tracks based on business needs and the
Company’s development direction, which will be gradually implemented in
future development. The Group endeavored to understand the needs of our
customers, refine our services and build an all-rounded service system under
the “Zhong An Intelligent Living” brand.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB412.2 million (2023: RMB351.1 million), representing an increase of
17.4% as compared with the 2023 Same Period. The Group’s revenue was
derived from three major business lines: (i) property management services;
(i) value-added services mainly to property developers; and (i) community
value-added services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business line
for the years indicated, both in absolute amount and as a percentage of total
revenue:

EEEwmE DT (8)
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31BLEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
ANEIFr B HEERRSN)

Property management services VX EERF 347,218 84.2% 261,200 74.4%
Value-added services mainly to TEmMEEMERZEEN

property developers BERD 36,815 8.9% 58,069 16.5%

Community value-added services 1 & 1% & fRFS 28,205 6.9% 31,864 9.1%

412,238 100.0% 351,133 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Property Management Services

During the Reporting Period, revenue from property management services
amounted to approximately RMB347.2 million, representing an increase
of 32.9% as compared with approximately RMB261.2 million in the 2023
Same Period. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total GFA under
management of approximately 20.0 million sg.m., representing an increase
of approximately 3.6 million sgq.m. or 22.0% as compared with approximately
16.4 million sg.m. in the 2023 Same Period. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in projects delivered by the Remaining Group
and the Remaining Group’s joint ventures and associates, as well as our
further expansion into independent third-party property developers. As of
31 December 2024, GFA managed by independent third-party property
developers was approximately 9.1 million sg.m., representing an increase of
20.3% from approximately 7.5 million sg.m. as of 31 December 2023.

A majority of our revenue from property management services is generated
from services provided to properties developed by Remaining Group. As of
31 December 2024, we had 57 properties (2023: 53 properties) developed
by Remaining Group under our management, with a total GFA under the
management of approximately 9.9 million sgq.m. (2023: approximately 8.0
million sg.m.).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of revenue from property
management services and GFA under our management by type of property
developers for the years indicated:

Y% EIE IR

RABREHBE WEEBRBBRALEA
347 28 B 75 B2023F R BN ARTE
261.28 & 7T N32.9% ° 732024 F 125 31
H AEBETEHEREEEBEL20088FH
K BR2023EEHEIAI16.4 8 & F 5 KL MNAY
3OEBFH K BRER2.0% ZIEREE
EOHBRERG TERNG TEENEGZE D
ERBENABINRAIBEE 28N U FHM
E—TNMAHBISE = TEMERERN
HRAOE #E2024F12831HEEABIL
B R MEREENERERENA1E
B 75 K®20235F 12831 BN 7.58 8 F
7RI T 20.3% ©

EMYMETERBEHIABOIBVATEER
BER NEBFTHEENYERENRE -BE
2024F12H318 » HMBE571E (20234 : 53
B TEYMXEEHR TEBMRE 78
MREERBNAIOF BT A K (20234F 1 4
ABOEEFHK) o

TREIIFFTEEREMEMEHELE
DREVEEERBHWARTERRER
TEFRAE -

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2024 2023
20245 20235
Number  GFA under Number ~ GFA under
of projects management Revenue Percentage  of projects management Revenue  Percentage
B TEREER KA 1Lt HE TEREER KA 1kt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (sq.m000)  (RMB'000)
(FERA) (AEEFT) (FEFH) AEHTFm)
Remaining Group! R TERY 57 9,865 235,294 67.8% 53 8,005 168,851 64.6%
Joint ventures and FTEAN
assoclates of the RELER
Remaining Group? Banrae 7 1,060 20,546 5.9% 6 881 6,315 2.5%
Independent third-party B E =%
property developers®  EH1E
HEme 66 9,073 91,378 26.3% 54 7,541 86,034 32.9%
Total 485t 130 19,998 347,218 100.0% 13 16,427 261,200 100.0%
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Notes:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

1) Refer to properties solely developed by the Remaining Group or jointly
developed by the Remaining Group and independent third-party property
developers where the Remaining Group held a controlling interest in such

properties.

@ Refer to properties jointly developed by the Remaining Group and independent
third-party property developers where the Remaining Group did not hold a
controlling interest in such properties.

3) Refer to properties solely developed by independent third-party property

developers.

Our Geographical Presence

The Yangtze River Delta Region is one of the more economically developed
regions in China. Its urbanization rate and per capita annual disposable
income are higher than the national averages and it has a national-leading
level of urban digitalization infrastructure. Therefore, the Yangtze River Delta
Region has always been and will continue to be our focus of development.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total GFA under
management by region for the periods indicated:

EEEwmE DT (8)
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALLEE

2024
20244
Number of GFA under

2023
20234
Number of GFA under

projects management Percentage projects  management Percentage
¥E TEEEER &L HE TEEEER 5 EE
(sq.m’000) (5q.m’000)
(FFHR) (FF5K)
Second-tier cities 4R 0 78 11,420 57.1% 68 10,015 61.0%
Third-tier cities!! = AR 7 1,179 5.9% 5 817 5.0%
Other cities!" HAthpg e 45 7,399 37.0% 40 5,595 34.0%
Total e 130 19,998 100.0% 113 16,427 100.0%
Note: Wzt
(1) For the purpose of this table, “second-tier cities” include Hangzhou, Ningbo, (N USRS > TR BEFMN 2

Hefei and Qingdao; “third-tier cities” include Jinhua and Wenzhou; and “other
cities” include Lishui, Huzhou, Chuzhou, Huaibei, Taizhou and Zhoushan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Portfolio of Properties under Management

While the majority of properties under our management are primarily
attributable to residential properties, we continuously sought to provide
property management services to non-residential properties in the Reporting
Period. The non-residential properties under our management are diverse,
including commercial and office buildings, serviced apartments, and public
and other properties (such as office buildings of PRC governmental bodies,
industrial parks, hospitals, schools, and museums). We believe that by
accumulating our experience and recognition for the quality of our property
management services to both residential and non-residential properties,
we will be able to continue to diversify our portfolio of properties under
management and further enlarge our customer base.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue from property
management services and GFA under management by types of property for
the years indicated:

TEMEES

BERMETENMEABDREEEYE
RO EARSHBNDTIEHERDIFEEY
ERHEYEEERT - RMOTERNIFEEY
XFEEE OEBERTFREFE RF
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mag - TEEE Bl BRRIEYE) -
RPEE BRERMAEAEERIFEEYE
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B RMREEES TEEEYEEASTRE
—TBEARMNERE

TREVBEMTEERYEREE D
MEBERFBWAKRTEREERAM

For the Year ended 31 December

HE12AALEE
2024 2023
20245 2023
Number of  GFA under Number of ~ GFA under
projects management Revenue Percentage projects  management Revenue  Percentage
#E TEREER KA 1Lt HE TERERR N fhLt
(sq.m’000)  (RMB’000) (%) (sq.m000)  (RMB'000) (%)
(FFEFR) ABEFT) (FEEA) AEEFT)
Residential properties A E¥% 17 18,262 269,444 77.6% 87 13,864 182,859 70.0%
Non-residential FEEYE
properties 13 1,736 17,774 22.4% 26 2,563 78,341 30.0%
Total 45t 130 19,998 347,218 100.0% 113 16,427 261,200 100.0%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Value-added Services Mainly to Property Developers

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue of the value-added
services mainly to property developers for the periods indicated, both in
absolute amount and as a percentage of total revenue:

EEEwmE DT (8)
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For the Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
(ANE#TFr B2 HEFRS)
Sales office management HEMESEEIERY
services 23,252 63.1% 44,404 76.5%
Preliminary planning and design AR & K& 58 51 58 0 AR 7S
consultancy services 9,119 24.8% 5,723 9.9%
Pre-delivery inspection services 3 {1 A8 & ARFS 4,444 12.1% 7,942 13.6%
36,815 100.0% 58,069 100.0%

We provide a range of value-added services mainly to property developers
covering different stages of property development projects, which primarily
comprise (i) sales office management services mainly including the provision
of management services at property sales venues and display units of
property developers, (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services
to property developers and (iii) pre-delivery inspection services.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from value-added services mainly
to property developers amounted to approximately RMB36.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB21.3 million as compared with
approximately RMB58.1 million in the 2023 Same Period.

The decrease was primarily attributable to the combined results of () a
decrease in the pre-delivery inspection services of approximately RMB3.5
million and (i) a decrease in the provision of sales office management
services of approximately RMB21.1 million.
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HESMREHEREBRNEMARHEE
EARTS ; (i) f= 3 22 7R 3 r B (AT AR B
B EEHARTS 5 K(i) AT RIRE IR o

RARESHETEmQE M EREENG
ERFW AL AR KE36.8F & 7t » ]20234F
BN ARESSAEETRLVAAREE21.3
BEiTe

BRARBRLDETEARUTSENG S
FrER () RATRIR B RIS ALD AN ARES
Bt RiMRHEERSREERBE L
ARE21 1B BT

ER
58

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Community Value-added Services

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the revenue of community
value-added services for the periods indicated, both in absolute amount and
as a percentage of total revenue:

HEEERTS

NERES PR EIE & E AR YA BRI BRAR
CUBH SR REBIRABB ST ¢

For the Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31ALEE
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
(RMB in thousands, except for percentages)
ANBHEFr B HERSN)
Common area management NHEEHEER
services 16,273 57.7% 17,851 56.0%
Renovation waste disposal EEEYIRIERTS
services 4,165 14.8% 2,546 8.0%
Car parking space sales BHIREBEAHE CERE
agency services 5,833 20.7% 11,467 36.0%
Community retail services HeTERRE 1,532 5.4% - -
Community car washing and ~ *t &5 8 % =R
beautification service 402 1.4% = =
28,205 100.0% 31,864 100.0%

We mainly provide community value-added services principally to property
owners and residents of our managed properties, which primarily comprise
() common area management services where we assist property owners
to lease out common areas for advertisement placements and operation
or promotion of businesses which help facilitate the living convenience
of the community, (i) renovation waste disposal services where we assist
the property owners in disposing of the waste generated as a result of
the renovation work carried out in their units and (i) car parking space
sales agency services where we assist the Remaining Group to sell and
purchasers to purchase car parking spaces in certain property projects we
managed or under our management.

Revenue from community value-added services was approximately RMB28.2
million during the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB3.7 million compared with approximately RMB31.9 million in the 2023
Same Period. The decrease was mainly due to subdued consumer spending
and an increasingly competitive market environment.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report

RUETEATEMENMEEIRERRE
HUBREERE EX28E(AeEE
BRT > B EXTHBAHEHUKE
BE UKREEREEFES  AEEL
& EIEEN ;()RIEREYEIERTS 15814
FETHREBERNREBUNETRN LM
EEREEY) ; K(i)EWMEEHEERER
B REAMBEEERTEETYHFEEET
WY TERBEEFEURERBEEE
fiLo

RAREHAR  HEIEERB WA AR
28.2H &7t BR2023F RN AR 31.98
BTRIOHOAREITEET ZRALEE
HRERBEMRNE TEHZFMANTIBIER

Ho



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales primarily consists of (i) staff costs which refer to the costs
of our on-site staff directly providing property management services, value-
added services mainly to property developers and community value-added
services; (i) expenses for cleaning and gardening services including cleaning,
waste and sewerage charges; (iiij expenses for maintenance services
and consumables including equipment repair expenses; and (iv) utilities
expenses including water and electricity charges, office supplies for property
management offices and communication charges.

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s cost of sales was approximately
RMB292.0 million (2023: approximately RMB232.3 million), representing
an increase of 25.7% compared with the 2023 Same Period. The growth
rate of cost of sales was higher than that of revenue of 8.3 percentage
points. The increase was primarily attributable to the expansion of the
property management business, which led to an increase in the area under
management and a rise in the number of employees.

During the Reporting Period, staff costs included in the cost of sales were
approximately RMB238.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB39.8 million as compared with approximately RMB198.6 million in the
2023 Same Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin by business segment for
the years indicated:
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For the Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HILEE

2024 2023

20245 20234

Property management services Y EIBRTS 27.4% 31.1%
Value-added services mainly to property developers FEmE[OEMERRZERN

12 ERTS 38.9% 41.5%

Community value-added services H&E (AR 38.8% 42.6%

29.2% 33.8%

The gross profit of the Group was approximately RMB120.3 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a slight increase of approximately RMB1.5
million as compared with approximately RMB118.8 million in the 2023 Same
Period.

AEBPRARSHABMNEN AN ARKE
120.38 & 70 B2023F EIHAN AR #118.8
BETEMIBIMOARK1 588 T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwED T (8)

The Group’s gross profit margin was affected by the combined gross
profit margin of the three segments of property management services,
community value-added services and value-added services mainly to
property developers. The gross profit margin decreased from 33.8% for the
2023 Same Period to 29.2% in the Reporting Period, which was primarily
due to the decreased gross profit margin on value-added services mainly to
property developers and property management services during the Reporting
Period.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses reached approximately RMB60.1 million,
representing an increase of 21.4% from approximately RMB49.5 million
for the 2023 Same Period. The administrative expense ratio (administrative
expense divided by revenue) was 14.6%, representing a slight increase of
0.5 percentage point compared to 14.1% in the 2023 Same Period, which
was mainly attributable to an increase in the area under management, as well
as the newly added community value-added services business.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 22.6% from
approximately RMB19.9 million for the 2023 Same Period to approximately
RMB15.4 million for the Reporting Period. The effective income tax rate was
29.2% (2023: 28.7%), representing an increase of 0.5 percentage point
compared to the 2023 Same Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit was approximately
RMB37.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of 24.5%
as compared with approximately RMB49.4 million for the 2023 Same Period.
The net profit margin was 9.1%, representing a decrease of 5 percentage
point as compared to 14.1% for the 2023 Same Period.

The profit attributable to the owners of the parent decreased by
approximately 22.9% from approximately RMB49.3 million for the 2023
Same Period to approximately RMB38.1 million for the Reporting Period. The
basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent were RMB7.4 cents per share (2023: RMB11.2 cents per share).

Trade receivables and prepayments, other
receivables and other assets

As of 31 December 2024, trade receivables and prepayments, other
receivables and other assets amounted to approximately RMB214.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 26.2% from approximately
RMB170.3 million as of 31 December 2023, which was primarily attributable
to (i) the expansion of GFA under management, which led to an increase in
trade receivables from property management services; and (i) the recovery
of trade receivables from real estate developers has been slow due to the
impact of national macroeconomic policies and market conditions in the real
estate industry.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report

NEBNEFEZYESERE L @IEE
RENETEmEEMERERNIEERY
S ARRIRABENEFELRFE - EFEH
2023F B HAMNB3.8% M EE AR SHIK Y
29.2% > EFETHENEERRHBHP AR
SHEFERmn R EMRE RN ERD
B EIRRBNERE TR

THRAX

THRALZHNAARK60.15 8 7t 82023
FEREHNARBE40.5T B TIEM21.4% 1T
BRSE (THEAZBRUEA) 214.6% 0 &
2023F [FHAM14.1 %8 LR T 0.5 H 15
B FEZHRESEREMMURIIETE
IR ERFE =TT -

FRriSHR 2

EBMREREZH2023FEREAML A
R1£10.95 8 70 122.6% = 78 3] &5 HA RS AY
HARIE154T BT - BREFTEMNE4A29.2%

(20234 : 28.7%) » ¥ 520234 EHALE N
TOSEEME-

FAFHE

EREMERR AEBRARS AR
MHABANEEI7.3EE T B2023F R A
HARMEIQ 4B BT V24.5% c &F]E S
9.1% > B2023FE B HAR14.1% BV 5E & 9
2ho

BATEE AEEFEB2023E R NG
AR H49.3E B TRV £922.9%E 75 37 &5 HE
B ARIESS1HE T FATEEIRRE
FEANELEREARBERBIAERA
7.4 (2023%F | 8RR ARE11.29) ©

FEUWE 5 AR e TR TR IR ~ HAth
FEWRRIE A e ELAth &5 22

B E2024F12831H > EWE Z R L TEN
B HtEWR B R EMEENA AR
21498 Bt WE E2023F12831HA
ARME170.3E BTl £4926.2%  TEHMP
(EEEREmBEEREER A EEER
TSRO FE IR B 5 BR ARG N 5 e (i) & UK 5= 3t 2=
EHESZRAOUEREE BEREERA
BBR B ETET RN ER -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group pursues a prudent treasury management policy and actively
manages its liquidity position to cope with daily operations and any demands
for capital for future development. Also, the Group actively reviews and
manages its capital structure on a regular basis to maintain the advantages
and security of a strong capital position and adjust the capital structure in
response to changes in economic conditions.

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity come from the proceeds from
our business operations. Most of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in RMB, which amounted to approximately RMB137.2
million as of 31 December 2024, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB40.1 million from RMB177.3 million as of 31 December 2023.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group’s current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 2.8 times (31 December 2023: 3.0 times).

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any bank borrowings, and
the gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by total equity) was nil.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 2,951 (31 December 2023: 2,696) employees as at
31 December 2024. Total staff costs of the Group (excluding the Directors’
and chief executive officer’s remuneration) for the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately RMB199.4 million (2023: RMB201.6 million). The
Group has adopted a system of determining employees’ remuneration based
on the performance of employees. The Group generally provides competitive
remuneration packages to employees, including basic salaries, performance-
based awards and year-end bonus. The Group also pays for social security
insurance for its employees, including medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, endowment insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment
insurance and housing funds. In terms of employee training, the Group
provides continuous and systematic training to employees based on their
positions and expertise to enhance their expert knowledge in property
management and related fields.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group’s revenues and expenditures are denominated
in RMB. As of 31 December 2024, the Group has not entered into any
hedging transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had no capital commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2024, the Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates
did not have any financial guarantees, mortgage guarantees for loans, or
other significant contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any significant
investments and made no other material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group intends to utilize part of the net proceeds raised from the listing
to acquire or invest in other property management companies as part of our
strategies to expand our business scale and market share. As at the date
of this report, the Group did not have any other future plans for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There were no important events affecting the Group which occurred since 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will establish its strategic foundation on “returning
to the essence of services and reshaping the quality-price matching
system” and adhere to the operational philosophy of “creating value through
services”. By building the “two primary and four auxiliary” core brand
standards, the Group aims to precisely identify homeowners’ core needs and
enhance customer satisfaction. In response to the profound transformations
within the property industry, the Group will focus on three key pillars,
“intelligent, ecological, and sustainable”. Efforts will be made to deepen its
foundation in the Yangtze River Delta region, innovate service models and
business structures, and continuously consolidate its leading position in
the industry, thereby achieving a transformative upgrade from a traditional
property service provider to a trusted intelligent lifestyle service provider.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Strategic Refinement and Business Upgrading

Leveraging the “Deep-rooted + Density Enhancement” strategy, the
focus is on the three core business segments of residential properties,
commercial offices, and public buildings. The Group will continuously
strengthen its regional density in the Yangtze River Delta and increase
the concentration of projects within single cities to achieve economies
of scale. Relying on the “Platform + Ecosystem” model, efforts are
being accelerated to advance the diversified value-added services
portfolio. Through the integration of resources on the “Zhongdatong”
(FR3Z48) ecosystem platform, the Group is creating online and offline
full-scenario touchpoints. Emphasis is placed on building the “Last
Kilometer” living service chain, encompassing community retail, home
services, asset operations, pet services, and more, to establish a
highly cohesive community ecosystem. At the same time, the Group
is accelerating the upgrade of the “1+9” service system, which is
rooted in fundamental property services. This initiative focuses on
the full lifecycle demands of communities by developing customized
product packages and incubating business lines, such as commercial
decoration, cleaning and beautification services, and charging station
operations, to establish a replicable and sustainable diversified income
structure.

Quality Upgrade and Customer Experience
Reshaping

To comprehensively enhance customer satisfaction, the Group will
actively implement the “Service Quality Leap Scheme”, focusing on
three key dimensions: responsiveness to customer needs, service
standards, and employee empowerment. By targeting these areas,
the Group aims to achieve a significant improvement in service quality.
Through ongoing diversified initiatives such as “Quality Supervision
Officer”, “General Manager Reception Day”, and “Listening Quality
Improvement Month”, the Group will deepen customer engagement
and precisely identify homeowners’ core needs. At the same time,
leveraging unique services such as “Happy Labor Day,” “Doing
One Thing for Our Residents,” and “Four Seasons at Home” as
platforms, the Group continuously enhances customer experience and
satisfaction and ensures that every customer can genuinely feel the
warmth and value of the services provided.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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IV.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

Technological empowerment and efficiency leap

The Group is increasing its investment in Internet of Things
technologies to facilitate intelligent replacements in scenarios
such as safety protection, parking management, and equipment
inspections. Through the development of a central data platform,
the Group aims to enhance service decision-making precision and
significantly boost operational efficiency. Innovations in “scenario-
based services” are being deepened, leveraging customer behavior
data to drive personalized service offerings. By integrating tools like
robotic assistants and intelligent property management platforms,
a 24-hour response mechanism has been established to enhance
homeowner interaction and strengthen brand loyalty. Simultaneously,
the “Headquarters Platform + Regional Partnership” management
mechanism is being advanced. This includes centralized procurement
through the supply chain, process automation reforms, and
technological substitutions to reduce marginal costs, thereby freeing
up resources to further enhance quality.

Assets Upgrading and Ecosystem
Co-governance

Proactively addressing cost pressure challenges within the industry,
the Group is accelerating the strategic shift from “property services” to
“asset management”. It is exploring ways to activate community space
resources and deeply engaging in scenarios, such as community
elderly care stations and shared office spaces, to establish a dual-
driving model of “property services + assets appreciation”. Innovative
mechanisms such as “transitioning from joint ventures to self-operated
models” and “volunteer co-construction with zero property fees” have
been implemented. These efforts, in collaboration with homeowners’
committees, aim to build a community co-governance platform that
enhances service transparency and homeowner participation, while
achieving dynamic balance between quality bonus and cost efficiency.

Humanistic Values and Social Responsibility

Embracing a “customer-centered” service philosophy, the Group
will cultivate a humanistic ecosystem through initiatives such as
community cultural festivals and neighborly assistance schemes.
These efforts are integrated with low-carbon park renovations,
community canteens, childcare stations, and other livelihood-oriented
facilities to support grassroots social governance. Over the next three
years, the Group will continue to advance the integration of intelligent
services with asset value, delivering measurable and sustainable social
benefits to create shared value for shareholders, customers, and
society.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In the face of deepening industry transformation, we will rely on a
clear strategic focus, solid operational capabilities, and breakthrough
innovative thinking to continuously build differentiated competitive
advantages. Our aim is to guide property services toward a new
paradigm of intelligence, ecology, and humanity. In doing so, we aspire
to become a trusted brand for customers and a respected century-
long benchmark in the industry.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company
and enhance corporate value and commitment to responsibility. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its corporate governance
standards and, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code during
the Reporting Period.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to ensure that the Company
continues to comply with the CG Code.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB1.89 cents
per Share (2023: RMB2.45 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2024
(the “Proposed Final Dividend”). The Proposed Final Dividend is subject to
the approval of Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) to be held on 5 June 2025 and will be paid on or before 30 July
2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 19 June 2025.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from 2 June 2025 to 5 June
2025, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company shall ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 30 May 2025 for registration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend (subject to
approval by the shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 16 June 2025 to 19 June 2025, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of
the Company shall ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 13 June 2025.

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities of the Company by
the Directors and the Company’s senior management who, because of his/
her office or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Company’s securities. The Directors have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December
2024.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Board has established its audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of
the Listing Rules and code provision D.3 of the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Group, oversee
the audit process, provide advice and comments to the Board and perform
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, including three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liang Xinjun, Mr. Chung
Chong Sun and Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chung Chong Sun, an independent non-executive Director who possesses
appropriate professional accounting and related financial management
expertise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 and confirmed that
it has complied with all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. Our Audit Committee has also
discussed audit and financial reporting matters.

The figures in respect of the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and the related notes thereto for the year ended 31 December
2024 as set out in this annual report have been agreed by the Company’s
auditor, Ernst & Young, to the amounts set out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst & Young in
this respect did not constitute an assurance engagement in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong Standards on Review
Engagements or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and consequently,
no assurance has been expressed by Ernst & Young on this annual report.

PUBLICATION OF ANNUAL RESULTS AND ANNUAL
REPORT ON THE WEBSITES OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE AND THE COMPANY

This annual report is published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com).

EEEwmE DT (8)

BEREZEEEEREARTEE20245F128
SIHIEFEENEHMBRE  WREREEEBI
FIEEANERA ZAREEKREESR
BT - BEREE G CHRB M
BEEEC

RERFTEHAEBE E2024F12831H 1k
FEZAHUBRAR aHERREMS
AR R AAARM NS T ERAABZ
YT KGHMERMAELAERFANG
SRR AS S EEIZEH — B BKG5TED
ERFAMIIEETH TETEAEBRRES S
SR GEAENEBE T £ FBEH
HRERNEBZEDEERNMETHZ
BRI DK BN ERA B A E R
REMZE-

R RAREFEETIHEF
FERFERS

2 FF 3R ) B T Bt 22 P 48 ik (www. hkexnews.hk)
R A B H8 S (www.zazhsh.com) E o

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR

29



30

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRSE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the CG Code
as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors its business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management of the
Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations and act in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of legal

actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an
annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman)
Ms. Ding Shuchun (Chief Executive Officer)

(newly appointed with effect on 18 January 2025)
Mr. Sun Zhihua (Vice Chairman, Co-chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Guang (resigned with effect on 18 January 2025)
Mr. Ding Lei
Ms. Xu Jianying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liang Xinjun
Mr. Chung Chong Sun
Mr. Chiu Ngam

Ms. Ding Shuchun, who has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect on 18 January 2025, has obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule
3.09D of the Listing Rules on 17 January 2025. Ms. Ding Shuchun has
confirmed she understood her obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has, at all times, met
the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to appointing independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Company believes that the diversity of the Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to ensure
that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board,
consider Board diversity in terms of, amongst other things, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All Board appointments will be based on merits and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of the
diversity of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, taking into account the
benefits of all relevant diversity aspects and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the Company
targets to appoint a minimum of one Director of a different gender. Up to
the date of this Annual Report, the Board had two female Directors. The
Board targets to maintain the current level of female representation, with
the minimum of one female member. As of 31 December 2024, 53.1% and
46.9% of the Group’s employees were male and female, respectively.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report, none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships) with any
other Director and chief executive of the Company.

As regards code provision C.1.5 of the CG Code, which requires each
director to disclose the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, the
identity of the public companies or organizations and an indication of the
time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their
commitments and any subsequent changes to the Company in a timely
manner.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

Directors keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors have confirmed that
they had complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code and details are
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set out below: CA.4f s EHAWT -

Types of Trainings

(See Remarks)
Directors = EagER) (REERR)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Zhongan Mzt A B
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE A B
Mr. Yang Guang (resigned with effect on e A B
18 January 2025) (72025415 18 H 5#1F)

Mr. Ding Lei T&EEE A B
Ms. Xu Jianying (Ey=tikogun A B
Independent Non-executive Directors B JEMITES
Mr. Liang Xinjun REERE A B
Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E A B
Mr. Chiu Ngam e =pie A B
Remarks: 5
A attending seminars, conferences and/or forums A: HEMSE EE&HmE
B:  reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials etc. B: HIEET B NERSHEMEE
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
have been separated as required by Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code. For the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Shi Zhongan served as
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Yang Guang served as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Yang Guang had resigned as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 18 January 2025 in order to devote more time on his
personal commitments. Following the resignation of Mr. Yang, Ms. Ding
Shuchun has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Sun
Zhihua has been appointed as the Co-chief Executive Officer with effect from
25 February 2025.

Board meetings

Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least four regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of majority of directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings regularly.
Notice of not less than 14 days is given of all regular Board meetings to
allow all Directors to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
committee meetings, 7 days’ notice is given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are despatched to the Directors or committee members at
least three days before meetings to ensure they have sufficient time to
review these documents and be adequately prepared. When the Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the
matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the chairman before the meeting.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors during the Reporting Period in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the CG Code.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
detail and include the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held
so that they have an opportunity to request amendments.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Company convened an annual general meeting on 6 June 2024, and the
Board convened four Board meetings during the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this annual report. The table below sets forth the
details of the attendance at these Board meetings:

EEERERS (B

MREE2024F 12831 HEFEREERE
HRAHAL AABBRIN2024F6 56 BHK
REFAG MEFEERTHREFTE
Eo TREIRFTEFTTERNHEFE

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s term of office

ERENEHALERTEERY

Annual
Board meetings general meeting
Name of Director EEN4 Exgg; BRBERY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman) M2t (F/E) 4/4 1A
Ms. Ding Shuchun TEBEZT NATER  NATER
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE 4/4 1A
Mr. Yang Guang e 4/4 1N
(resigned with effect on 18 January 2025) (3820254F 15 18H F#1F)
Ms. Xu Jianying (Ey=tikogun 4/4 1N
Mr. Ding Lei T&EEE 4/4 1N
Independent Non-executive Directors B JEMITES
Mr. Liang Xinjun REERE 4/4 1N
Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E 4/4 1N
Mr. Chiu Ngam e =pie 4/4 1N
BOARD COMMITTEES EEEZLEY

The Company has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a Nomination Committee. Each of these committees has
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The chairmen of these committees will report their findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.

Audit Committee

Our Board has established an audit committee in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and Code D.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted written
terms of reference. The primary duties of our Audit Committee are to review
and monitor the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control system, to oversee the audit process, to provide advice and
comments to our Board, and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
may be assigned by the Board.
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The chairperson of the Audit Committee is Mr. Chung Chong Sun. The other
members are Mr. Liang Xinjun and Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee
comprised all of the three independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees, and terms of engagement
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Auditor;

2. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company'’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer
of the Company or the Auditor before submission to the Board; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system, and risk management
system, and the associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs, and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange and Company websites.

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 and confirmed
that it has complied all applicable accounting principles, standards and
requirements, and made sufficient disclosures. The Audit Committee has
also discussed the matters of audit and financial reporting. Our Audit
Committee has also reviewed the significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management systems
and connected transactions, and have discussed with the Auditor about the
tasks they performed.

Our Audit Committee has reviewed the Auditor's remuneration for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and recommended that the Board re-appointing
Ernst & Young as the company’s auditor for the year ending 31 December
2025, subject to approval by the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The Board did not deviate from the recommendations of the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of an
external auditor.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held to discuss and
consider the following matters:

o reviewed the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
six months ended 30 June 2024;

o reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024;

o reviewed the Auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and strategy
of the Group;

o reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board on the improvement of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company; and

o reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of the internal audit
function of the Company and made recommendations to the Board on
the improvement of the internal audit function of the Company.

The attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table
below:

EEERERS (B

HE2024F12B31HIEFEFERKRBEELRTE
RHELE BZEE Y RITMAGE U
M EBUTAR

o  EBERAARAKEWBATEE20245F
6A30H LB R Z FEIZEAE ;

. ERARATEHE2024F12831H LR
BEENKEZEHTERE ;

s  ERZBMAMAERBSHEAR
BEEYIR S

s ERFATDRABREERABERIZERR
NEEMERAEMM L EERAT
EREEARNEEERMOEFTER
HERRERE &

s  EBERAATNEBZBENEEIEKR
BN U E AR HNABEZ
BEEDEFTRMAERERZ

BEREEEEMELFZETENBERE
i

Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office

RESEHALE

Name of committee member LZEEREHS S BITEERY
Mr. Chung Chong Sun (Chairman) BRI E () 2/2
Mr. Liang Xinjun REBXE 1/2
Mr. Chiu Ngam =g v 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

Our Board has established a Remuneration Committee in compliance
with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules and Code E.1 of the CG
Code and has adopted written terms of reference. The primary duties
of our Remuneration Committee are to establish, review and make
recommendations to the Directors on our policy and structure concerning
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies concerning such remuneration, determine the terms of the specific
remuneration package of each executive Director and senior management
and review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives. Our Remuneration Committee currently
consists of two executive Directors, Mr. Sun Zhihua and Ms. Xu Jianying,
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Chong Sun, Mr.
Liang Xinjun, and Mr. Chiu Ngam. Our Remuneration Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. Liang Xinjun.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the recommendation model
described in E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and senior

management of the Company, whose biographies are set out on pages 48 to
58 of this annual report, for the Reporting Period, are set out below:
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Number of Total

Number of Senior Number of

Directors Management individuals

Remuneration band (RMB) e E (AR EEAY SREEEAH A
0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000 7 2 9
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001%2,000,000 2 1 3

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or past directors
of the Company and the senior management (including five highest paid
individuals) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the Reporting Period.
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Our Remuneration Committee convened 1 meeting during the Reporting
Period. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at the
meeting:

EEERERS (B

RIS FNEEEAMINGHE - T&
IS GRNHEFTE

Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office

RESEHALE

Name of committee member LZEGREHSA S BITEERY
Mr. Liang Xinjun (Chairman) REERE (FEFE) 11
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEERE 1M
Ms. Xu Jianying REBRT 1/1
Mr. Chung Chong Sun AT E 1/1
Mr. Chiu Ngam =g was 1/1

The major work performed by our remuneration committee during the
Reporting Period included, among others, the following:

° reviewed and made recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration packages and overall benefits for the Directors and the
senior management of the Company;

° made recommendations to the Board in relation to all consultancy
agreements and service contracts or any variations, renewals or
modifications thereof, entered into between the Company and the
Directors and senior management of the Company or any associate
company of any of them;

° considered what details of the remuneration/benefits of the Directors
should be reported in the Company’s corporate governance report in
the annual report and how those details should be presented, including
determining the policy for the remuneration of Directors, assessing
the performance of executive Directors and approving the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts; and

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating remuneration policy.
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Nomination Committee

Our Board has established a nomination committee in compliance with
Code B.3 of the CG Code, and has adopted written terms of reference.
The primary duties of our Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of our Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes to the
composition of our Board, identify, select or make recommendations to
our Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship, and
ensure the diversity of our Board members, assess the independence of
our independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to
our Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors. Our
Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive Director, Mr. Shi
Zhongan, and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung Chong
Sun and Mr. Liang Xinjun. Our Nomination Committee is currently chaired by
Mr. Shi Zhongan.
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Our nomination committee convened 1 meeting during the Reporting Period. RBREHE RBLEEEAMRGEHE TK
The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at the meeting: HIZEENEEES -
Number of
meetings
attended/

held during the
Director’s term

of office
RESEHALRE
Name of committee member ZEEREHS S BITEERE
Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman) MR E (F/E) 1/1
Mr. Liang Xinjun REBXE 11
Mr. Chung Chong Sun BAlFT A E 1/1
The work performed by our nomination committee included, among others, RLZEGETNIEERE HAP8E) XU
the following: TEIE !

° reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

° assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors; and

° reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the nomination
policy.
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Nomination Policy

0

(i)

Objective

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates and
make recommendations to the Shareholders for election as the
Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors to fill casual
vacancies.

The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate, nominate
a number of candidates more than the number of Directors to be
appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or the number of
casual vacancies to be filled.

Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board, the
factors would be used as reference by the nomination committee
include but not limited to the following:

(@ integrity;

(b)  accomplishment and experience in the industry of which the
Company is a part;

() commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(d)  diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service;

(e)  fulfilment of independence guidelines for the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules; and

(] any factors as the nomination committee or the Board may, from
time to time, consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will ask the proposed candidates to submit
the necessary personal information in a prescribed form.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Articles of Association and other applicable rules
and regulations.
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(i) Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
the members of the Board, if any, for consideration by the Nomination
Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also
put forward candidates for consideration.

In the context of the appointment of any proposed candidate to
the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate
due diligence in respect of such individual candidate and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing members of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for selection as a Director”, which is available on the Company’s
website, for procedures for Shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the fee paid/payable to the external
auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services is
set out as follows:
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry
out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 73 to 78 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company recognizes that risk management is critical to the success
of any property management companies in the PRC. Key operational risks
that the Company face include changes in general market conditions and
the regulatory environment of the PRC property management market, local
economic environment, expansion risks relating to entering into new cities or
geographic regions, ability to timely complete our projects with sound quality,
available financing to support our growth, competition from other property
management companies and our ability to promote and serve the property
owners in a timely fashion.

In order to meet these challenges, the Company have adopted, a series
of internal control policies, procedures and plans that are designed to
reasonably assure effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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In order to ensure the effective implementation of such internal control
policies, the Company has adopted various on-going measures, including
the following:

o The Board is responsible and has general powers over the
management and conduct of the business of the Group. Any
significant business decision involving material risks are reviewed,
analyzed and approved at the Board level to ensure a thorough
examination of the associated risks at our highest corporate
governance body.

° The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the Board regarding
the effectiveness of comprehensive risk management, which in turn
is accountable to the general meetings of the Company. The Chief
Executive Officer is able to authorize relevant department leaders
who take charge of the establishment and daily operation of the risk
management systems.

o The risk management department of the Company is responsible
for proposing risk management strategies, formulating rules and
regulations on risk management, preparing annual risk management
assessments and reports, guiding all departments and subsidiaries on
relevant tasks, and conducting risk management trainings. It is also
in charge of designing a comprehensive risk management evaluation
system, and supervising the implementation of risk management
measures.

o Each of functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company is
in charge of the daily business operations and risk monitoring, and is
responsible for the supervision of the respective fields of operations on
a daily basis as well as the supervision and approval of any material
business decisions of the city and project companies of the Group.

The Company has conducted annual review on the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Company’s risk management system for the year ended 31
December 2024 and the management confirmed that there is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the risk management system which has been
identified. During the Reporting Period, the Company satisfied and confirmed
that the Company’s risk management system was effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is designed to provide
reasonable and adequate assurance for effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

Our internal control system covers all major aspects of our operations.
To effectively implement such processes, the Company has a set of
comprehensive policies and guidelines that set out details regarding
the internal control standards, segregation of responsibilities, approval
procedures, and personnel accountability in each aspect. The Company
also carries out regular internal assessments and training to ensure our
employees are equipped with sufficient knowledge of such policies and
guidelines.

The Company has conducted annual review on the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Company’s internal control system for the year ended 31
December 2024 and the management confirmed that there is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system which has been
identified. During the Reporting Period, the Company satisfied and confirmed
that the Company’s internal control system was effective and adequate.

Information Disclosure

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules and
other applicable laws and publishes periodic reports and announcements
to the public in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. In particular,
the Company has put in place a robust framework for the disclosure of
inside information in compliance with the SFO. The framework sets out
the procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Company. The framework and its
effectiveness are subject to review by the Board on a regular basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior management
of the Company to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the
Company. The internal audit function provides independent and objective
assurance as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of
the Company’s framework of risk management, control and governance
processes, as designed and represented by the Company’s management, is
adequate. The internal audit function of the Company is independent of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.

Results of audit work, together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework, are reported to the Audit Committee
as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews the action plans of
the Company’s management in relation to audit findings and verifies the
adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating controls before formally closing
the issue.

EEERERS (B

PO R 85 &

AATHABEERAEENERANK
SREE A RYBERNETERERE
RAERHSEBEERE -

NBEERARRECENRBAERTEH &
BEMEREZSREF FARBEL—E2HE
BRI IR HRE5 AR 2R
BERD BRHEFRAESHENSHEF
B ARBIFEHRETRMTMEREMRE
A FERESTR D T B BRKRIES] -

AT EFEE2024F 12831 L EER
EATAHNBEERK B RMRETE
EEL EEERINDEERK S E L E
BB ARA KRG - RIS AA T
SRR AT ABEERAE BTN
Do

BRHRE

AABRRBLETRAKAEMBREREZAR
BWBER KRR BAEREREREMNT
BERAGS - LHEHR AABEBREEST
HERAMKENE IS ELR2ER Z
ERHIRHREREMARHENRERF
A EERE  UEERKNETREARTDNE
WER B ERGRERKENA -

R ERE 1%

RRTB)RA NEBEIZREE - WEREIZIAERY
TEREASMIEFERELATSRERE
BREXABDME - BEMAIFEERE W
HBEZB A A B EEEFHI5T KRRt
NARBRBEER BIEREAEFERN
REARETHNES EMREBILIZEHN
%58 AR B BN EBB LB IUN A AT
B R R EIE R BB ERIERIE o

BERIGEREEERRBREERETE
RHNEERTEERE R TRAEZEES
ER-EIENERDERPIERBERLTE
2R NEPEZBAETEERE A AT EE
BT PR3 IR R R IR RO B 5t B A%
BRAEHENTEEERBNIE -

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR

a5



46

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Company Secretary

Mr. Yeung Man, Simon had resigned as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 19 July 2024. Following his resignation, Mr.
Lin Caihe (“Mr. Lin”) has been appointed as the company secretary of
the Company with effect from 19 July 2024. Mr. Lin is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). During the year ended
31 December 2024, Mr. Lin has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company is committed to pursuing active dialogue with Shareholders as
well as to provide timely disclosure of information concerning the Company’s
material developments to its Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice of annual
general meeting together with the meeting materials will be despatched
to all Shareholders not less than 21 clear days before the annual general
meeting. As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at general meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors,
for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. In addition, the Company
regards annual general meeting as an important event, and all Directors,
the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior management and external
auditor will attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairman of the Board or each Board
Committee fail to attend the meeting, then other members of each Board
Committee will be invited to attend the annual general meeting and answer
Shareholders’ inquiries thereat. All resolutions proposed at general meetings
will be voted by poll. The voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com)
on the same day of the relevant general meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
(www.zazhsh.com), where the latest information and updates on its business
operation and development, corporate governance practice, contact
information of investor relations and other information are published for the
public’s access.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

In accordance with article 17 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the issued
Shares which as at that date carry the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company. The Shareholders’ requisition must state the objects and the
resolutions to be added to the agenda of the meeting and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the Registered Office, and may consist of several documents in like
form each signed by one or more requisitionists. If there are no Directors
as at the date of the deposit of the Shareholders’ requisition or if the
Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the Members’
requisition duly proceed to convene a general meeting to be held within a
further 21 days, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of the requisitionists, may themselves
convene a general meeting, but any meeting so convened shall be held no
later than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the said 21
day period.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Articles of Association and the
Cayman lIslands Companies Law. However, Shareholders who wish to
propose resolutions may follow article 17 of the Articles of Association for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution
at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of article 17 are set out
above. Shareholders may at any time lodge the aforesaid requisition to the
Board in writing at the Company’s principal place of business in Room 4009,
40/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Communication Policy

The Board is responsible for regularly reviewing the effectiveness of
the shareholders’ communication policy, and it was satisfied with the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy
in the year ended 31 December 2024, as the policy has provided effective
channels for Shareholders, potential investors and other stakeholders of the
Group to communicate their views with the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their inquiries and concerns to the Board

in writing through investor relations whose contact details are as follows:

Address:
Room 4009, 40/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

Email: www.zazhsh.com

Amendment to the Memorandum and Articles of
Associations

The Company’s memorandum and articles of association did not change
during the Reporting Period.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Zhongan (“Mr. Shi”) (alias Shi Kancheng), aged 62, was appointed
as our Director on November 16, 2020 and re-designated as our executive
Director and chairman of the Board on June 4, 2021. Mr. Shi is responsible
for overseeing business development, formulation and implementation of
business strategies of our Group. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of our Board. He currently holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Remaining Group and our Group.

Mr. Shi has over 32 years’ experience in overall strategic planning and
corporate operations, investment and financial decisions and financial
management relating to property management and property development
industry. Mr. Shi served as a tax officer in the finance and revenue bureau
of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou. Mr. Shi joined Zhong An Group since the
establishment of the first member of the Zhong An Group, Zhejiang Zhong
An, in December 1997. Since then, he has been overseeing business
development, formulation and implementation of business strategies of
both the property development of the Remaining Zhong An Group and
property management of our Group since their commencement of business
in 1997 and 1998, respectively. Mr. Shi is currently the executive director
and chairman of the board of directors of Zhong An, and the non-executive
director and chairperson of the board of directors of China New City.

Mr. Shi completed a program for presidents of real estate companies
organized by Zhejiang University G#7TA%2)in August 2006 and a program
for executive officers, focusing on globalization and real estate developers,
organized by the Foreign Academic Cultural Exchange Centre of Tsinghua
University CEZEA2Z)in October 2006. Mr. Shi also obtained a doctoral
degree in business administration from State University of Arizona in May
2017.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Ding Shuchun (“Ms. Ding”), aged 44, was appointed as the executive
Director with effect from 18 January 2025, and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 25 February 2025. Ms.
Ding has been the vice president of the Company being responsible for
its financial management and internal control of the Company since May
2024. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Ding served as the deputy director
and was promoted to director of the audit department of China New City in
September 2015 and April 2017, respectively. In March 2019, Ms. Ding was
appointed as the general manager of the internal audit department of Zhong
An.

Ms. Ding obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Zhejiang
University of Technology (1T T2 A%2)in January 2009, a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from Zhejiang University (71 X&) via distance
learning in June 2017 and a bachelor’'s degree in management from Zhejiang
University Gifi7T K2 via distance learning in July 2019. Ms. Ding also
obtained the intermediate level certificate in real estate economics from the
Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FREE A R £ 1B A ZFEEB) (currently known
as Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (F#E AR
HAME A HE R ZIRFESR) )in November 2005, and the intermediate
level certificate in human resources economics from the Hangzhou Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau (fiMNH A NERIT S RER)
in November 2009. Ms. Ding is a Certified Internal Auditor of The Institute
of Internal Auditors and obtained the Certification in Risk Management
Assurance from The Institute of Internal Auditors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. Sun Zhihua (“Mr. Sun”), aged 46, was appointed as our executive
Director on June 4, 2021 and Co-chief Executive Officer of our Company
on February 25, 2025. Mr. Sun is responsible for the formulation and
implementation of business strategy, daily management and operation of our
Group. He is also a member of the remuneration committee of our Board.
On 25 August 2023, Mr. Sun had been redesignated from the chief executive
officer to the vice chairman of the Board.

Mr. Sun has over 23 years of experience in property administration and
management. Mr. Sun joined Zhong An Group in July 2001 and has served
in various positions of Zhong An Group. From July 2001 to March 2003,
he worked as an officer, where he was primarily responsible for office
administration. From March 20083 to February 2012, he worked as manager
of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged in property development,
where he was primarily responsible for its overall operations and expansion
of Zhong An Group’s property management business including the set-
up of Hefei Green Harbor. From February 2012 to April 2014, he worked
as secretary to chief executive officer of Zhong An, where he was primarily
responsible for assisting the chief executive officer in formulation and
implementation of business strategies of both the property development and
property management business of Zhong An Group. From April 2014 to April
2018, he worked as manager of chief executive officer's office and head
of the operation center of Zhong An, where he was primarily responsible
for Zhong An Group’s overall operations and assisting the chief executive
officer in formulation and implementation of strategies of both the property
development and property management business of Zhong An Group. From
April 2018 to March 2021, he worked as general manager of the engineering
operation center of Zhong An and was responsible for strategic planning,
project engineering administration and management of Zhong An Group.
In February 2020, Mr. Sun also undertook the responsibility as assistant to
chief executive officer of Zhong An where he was primarily responsible for
assisting the chief executive officer of Zhong An with its overall strategic
development and major business decisions.

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor’'s degree in engineering majoring in

technological economics of Zhejiang University of Technology GHi 71 T2k
2)in June 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Xu Jianying (“Ms. Xu”), aged 50, was appointed as our executive
Director on 4 June 2021 and head of financial management center on 31
March 2021. Ms. Xu is responsible for financial management of our Group.
She is also a member of the remuneration committee of our Board.

Ms. Xu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Ms. Xu joined Zhong An Group in January 2007. From
January 2007 to August 2011, Ms. Xu worked as an officer at the financial
management center of Zhong An, where she was primarily responsible for
its daily operation and management. From August 2011 to October 2012,
Ms. Xu was promoted to manager of the finance department of Zhong An
Management, where she was primarily responsible for managing the finance
department. From October 2012 to October 2015, Ms. Xu worked as deputy
head of finance of Zhong An Service Holding, where she was primarily
responsible for managing the finance department and strategic financial
planning. From October 2015 to April 2019, Ms. Xu worked as deputy
general manager of financial investment center of Zhong An Service Holding,
where she was primarily responsible for financial management and strategic
financial planning. From April 2019 to September 2020, she worked as head
of finance of Zhong An Management, where she was primarily responsible
for managing and supervising its operation. From September 2020 to March
2021, she worked as head of financial management center of Zhong An
Management where she was primarily responsible for financial and budget
management and capital operations of property management business
of Zhong An Group. Prior to joining of Zhong An Group, from April 2003
to January 2007, Ms. Xu served as head of finance of Zhejiang Wenhua
Garments Co., Ltd. G I X ZEREN A PRAE)) and was primarily responsible
for financial management and accounting matters.

Ms. Xu obtained a diploma in accounting from Zhejiang Sci-tech University
GHIIE T AZ)in January 2010 through part-time study. She became a
qualified international certified management accountant of the International
Certified Management Accountant Association in November 2016. Ms. Xu
obtained the qualification of tax accountant (intermediate level) issued by
China Association of Chief Financial Officers (P El48 S 5t ET 1) in January
2021.
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Mr. Ding Lei (“Mr. Ding”) aged 44, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 25 August 2023, and a general manager of
Wanlu region of the Group since March 2021. Mr. Ding is responsible for
the operations, investment and quality control of projects in Wanlu region,
covering Anhui province and Shandong province. He is also the director of
Anhui Zhongan Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Zhongan Property”)
and Hefei Green Harbor Property Management Co., Ltd. (“‘Hefei Green
Harbor”) which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Ding has over 17 years of experience in the property management
industry. From July 2006 to July 2009, Mr. Ding worked as quality control
officer of Zhejiang Zhong An Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Zhong
An Management”), where he was primarily responsible for quality control
operation. He left the Zhong An Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“Zhong
An Group”) in July 2009 and worked as a quality control manager at Zhejiang
Nade Property Management Co., Ltd. (J I EYERFERAT)
(currently known as Zhejiang Wanxingheng Service Co., Ltd. GIi3T & &2/ iR
BARAE)) from July 2009 to June 2010 and was primarily responsible
for quality control and system implementation. Mr. Ding re-joined the Zhong
An Group in June 2010. From June 2010 to March 2016, he worked as
a property manager of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily
responsible for operation and management of property management
projects. From March 2016 to January 2018, Mr. Ding worked as deputy
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property, where he was primarily
responsible for overseeing the property management business in Huaibei
region. From January 2018 to April 2019, Mr. Ding worked as a general
manager of Anhui region of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily
responsible for the management of the Huaibei and Hefei branch offices.
From April 2019 to March 2021, Mr. Ding worked as a deputy general
manager of Zhong An Management, where he was primarily responsible
for day-to-day operation and management of the property management
business of the Zhong An Group. From September 2020 to March 2021, Mr.
Ding also undertook the responsibility as general manager of Wanlu region of
Zhong An Management, where he was primarily responsible for its operation
and management of property management business in Anhui and Shandong
regions. Since May 2019, Mr. Ding has also been serving as director and
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property and Hefei Green Harbor, where
he is primarily responsible for their daily operation and management.

In July 2018, Mr. Ding obtained a diploma in administrative management

from the University of International Business and Economics (i 9MEHEE 5
A %) via distance learning.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Chong Sun (“Mr. Chung”), aged 49, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on December 14, 2021. Mr. Chung is
primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
our Board.

Mr. Chung has over 26 years of professional experience in financing and
capital operations. From July 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chung worked as an
associate of the investment bank department in Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) as his last position and was responsible for projects of initial
public offering, corporate finance and providing financial advice. From May
2000 to July 2001, Mr. Chung worked as a senior executive in Deloitte
& Touche Corporate Finance Limited (Bt FEM A RAE) and
was responsible for projects of initial public offering, corporate finance and
providing financial advice. From August 2001 to August 2003, Mr. Chung
worked as an associate director of mergers and acquisitions department as
his last position in Cooperative Rabobank U.A. Hong Kong Branch (far &
E1E$R1TEHEH1T), a Dutch multinational banking and financial services
company. From August 2003 to December 2005, Mr. Chung worked
as manager of Mainland investment promotion unit in InvestHK of the
government of Hong Kong (& # B &) and was responsible for introducing
Hong Kong to overseas and Mainland entrepreneurs. From December 2005
to September 2018, Mr. Chung worked as senior vice president of issuer
services, market development department in Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (B8R Z M4EEFTAR/AB])and was responsible for
establishing the ecosystem for the listing of mainland enterprises in Hong
Kong, including, among others, mainland client relationship management and
mainland marketing. From September 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Chung worked
as a chief financial officer in Xiaoi Robot Technology (H.K.) Limited (F#&%
BB AR F A R/AF)) and was responsible for financial functions, risk
management and investor relations. He has been the director of Resourceful
Minds Limited GE & RAE)) since September 2018 and is primarily
responsible for the daily operations and providing strategic advice. From
November 2018 to November 2019, Mr. Chung served as a director of the
executive committee and a contact convener of the Al and Hi-Tech Group
in the Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce in China-Shanghai (FEI& 7 (ith
&) @ &-_E78) . Mr. Chung has been appointed as a member of the advisory
committee of the IT Innovation Lab in Secondary Schools Initiative by the
government of Hong Kong since September 2020. Mr. Chung is currently an
independent non-executive director of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company
Limited (stock code: 9993) and Strawbear Entertainment Group (stock
code: 2125), shares of which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1997. He is also a CPA of
Washington State Board of Accountancy since July 2003 and a CFA of CFA
Institute since September 2004, and a member of American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Liang Xinjun (“Mr. Liang”), aged 56, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on December 14, 2021. Mr. Liang is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee and nomination committee
of our Board.

Mr. Liang is the chairman and chief executive officer of XIN Family and a co-
founder of Fosun Group. He served as executive director, vice chairman
and chief executive officer of Fosun International Limited (stock code: 0656)
between August 2005 to March 2017, shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liang currently also serves as the advisor
of UCARS Group, a director on the board of Tongiji University (B7% K2 ,
the honorary president of Fudan University Singapore Alumni Association

(EBXEBHMMFERALE), a member of Singapore Business China (Ff
N3z 3@ m R &) Business Leaders Committee, a member of the Advisory
Committee of the School of Computer and Information Systems of Singapore
Management University GETINIEEIE A ), and the advisor of the advisory
committee of the S.M.A.R.T. Entrepreneur Program of Singapore University
of Technology and Design (SUTD 0 &l 58 51 K 52) .

Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in genetics from
Fudan University (8 B A2 in July 1991. He obtained an executive master
degree in business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (1@ 2 B7)in April 2007. Mr. Liang also obtained a doctorate
degree in business administration (global financial management) from Arizona
State University in May 2015.

Mr. Chiu Ngam (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 51, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 14 December 2021. Mr. Chiu is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group. He is also a member of the audit committee and
remuneration committee of our Board.

Mr. Chiu has over 27 years of professional experience in financial
management. From August 1997 to November 2001, Mr. Chiu worked in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. Hong Kong, an international accounting firm,
with his last position as a senior associate. From November 2001 to May
2002, he worked as a senior accountant in eForce Management Limited,
an operation vehicle of eForce Holdings Limited (BRHERERAT), a
manufacturer and seller of healthcare and household products, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0943). From May 2002 to August 2004, he worked as a finance manager in
Minmetals Land Limited (FLAEHIZES RAE) (formerly known as ONFEM
Holdings Limited (RABBEEABRAF)), a company engaged in real
estate development, specialized construction, and property leasing, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0230). From June 2005 to May 2007, he worked as an assistant financial
controller of ITC Properties Management Limited (B3t ZEEIZEEFE A
TJ), a property development and investment company and the shares of
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

its parent company, ITC Properties Group Limited are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0199). From May 2007 to March
2008, he worked as a group financial controller in Carrianna Group Holdings
Company Limited (EE £ B R A R A B)) (formerly known as Tak Sing
Alliance Holdings Limited GERLEE®E)), a company engaged in property,
restaurant, food and hotel, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0126). From February 2008 to November
2008, he worked as a financial controller in China Oriental Group Company
Limited (FEIER 5 EBZERBRAF), a manufacturer and seller of steel
and property developer, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0581). From April 2009 to March 2010,
he worked as a vice president of finance of a subsidiary of Genting Hong
Kong Limited (ETEEHBAR/AE]), a cruise, entertainment and hospitality
company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0678). From March 2010 to July 2015, he worked as a financial
controller and company secretary in China Golden Development Holdings
Limited (currently known as Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (tf42
STEREIZTRARAT)), a commercial property operator and investment
company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0162). From July 2015 to February 2017, he worked as
a financial controller and company secretary of China Sandi Holdings
Limited (FRE =@ R BR/AE]), a property development and property
investment company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0910). From February 2017 to February 2019,
he served as a chief financial officer and company secretary of China New
City, a property development company, whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1321). From December 2018 to
August 2019, he worked as a chief financial officer of Sansheng Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd. (= BX ¥/ (@) BBRAE), a property development and
property investment company, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2183). From August 2019 and November
2019 to September 2023, Mr. Chiu served as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Radiance Holdings (Group) Company Limited
(“Radiance Holdings”), respectively, whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9993) and is primarily responsible
for financial management and company secretarial matters, on 30
September 2023, Mr. Chiu has been appointed as advisor of the Radiance
Holdings. In December 2021, Mr. Chiu was awarded “The Best CFO Award”
in the “2021 China Financial Awards” by China Financial Market magazine.

Mr. Chiu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in July
1997. Mr. Chiu has been a CPA since October 2000 and a fellow of HKICPA
since September 2009. He has also been a member of American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since January 1999, a CPA of Washington
State Board of Accountancy since January 1999, and is a member of INSOL
International, a member of taxation faculty of HKICPA and a member of
restructuring and insolvency faculty of HKICPA.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yang Zhigin (“Ms. Yang”), aged 47, was appointed as the head of
community value-added services division of our Group in March 2021. Ms.
Yang is responsible for community value-added operation management.

Ms. Yang has over 14 years of experience in corporate management. From
October 2009 to March 2013, Ms. Yang worked as an assistant to the
general manager and the manager of the human resources department of
Zhejiang FF Electrical Power Equipment Co., Ltd. G I # EE HREH R
‘AB]), a company engaged in electrical power equipment manufacturing,
where she was primarily responsible for overseeing the administrative
affairs and assisting the general manager in its daily operation. Ms. Yang
joined Zhong An Group in March 2013. From March 2013 to November
2016, Ms. Yang worked as deputy general manager of a subsidiary of
Zhong An principally engaged in provision of housekeeping services, where
she was primarily responsible for its daily operation and management.
From November 2016 to April 2019, Ms. Yang worked as an assistant to
the general manager of Zhong An Management and was responsible for
assisting the general manager in the day-to-day operation and administration
of Zhong An Management. From April 2019 to March 2021, Ms. Yang
worked as secretary of the office of the board of directors and subsequently
as head of operation management center of Zhong An Management
where she was primarily responsible for the operation and management of
community value-added services and its administration.

Ms. Yang obtained a certificate of human resources management (A 7]
BRE AN issued by Occupational Skill Testing Authority (B 2+ SEZETE
(#5%) A1) in December 2005. Ms. Yang obtained a diploma in business
management from Southwest University of Science and Technology (78 = %}
£ K2 in January 2011,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Xu Pengcheng (“Mr. Xu”), aged 39, was appointed as head of operation
management center of our Group on March 31, 2021. Mr. Xu is responsible
for daily operation and management of our Group. He is also the director of
Huaibei Zhonghong which is a subsidiary of our Company.

Mr. Xu has over 9 years of experience in corporate management. From
March 2009 to April 2011, Mr. Xu worked as a hydropower installation
engineer in Anhui Wanbei Coal and Electricity Hengxin Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Z#HERIEEEEERMEMREERRAD),
a company engaged in the real estate industry, where he was primarily
responsible for managing hydropower engineering of projects under
development. Mr. Xu joined Zhong An Group in April 2011. From April 2011
to April 20183, he worked as an electrical and mechanical installation engineer
of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged in property development,
where he was primarily responsible for managing hydropower engineering
of projects under development. From April 2013 to April 2014, he worked
as an electrical and mechanical installation engineer of Zhong An and was
primarily responsible for managing hydropower engineering of projects
under development. From April 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Xu worked as
deputy project operation manager of operation center of Zhong An, where
he was primarily responsible for planning and managing its development
projects. From April 2017 to April 2019, he worked as manager of integrated
operation department of a subsidiary of Zhong An principally engaged
in property development, where he was primarily responsible for human
resources, legal management and operation management of real estate
development. From April 2019 to September 2020, Mr. Xu worked as deputy
general manager of Anhui Zhongan Property, and general manager of the
Huaibei branch office of Zhong An, where he was primarily responsible for
their day-to-day operation and management. From September 2020 to
March 2021, he was the head of integrated management center of Zhong
An Management and was primarily responsible for day-to-day management
and operations of the property management business of Zhong An Group.
Since March 2020, Mr. Xu has also been serving as director and general
manager of Huaibei Zhonghong, where he is primarily responsible for its
daily operation and management. Since July 2022. Mr. Xu has been serving
as the chairman of the board of Shaoxing Zhongming, where he is primarily
responsible for its overall management and business decisions.

Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering from China Central
Radio and TV University (FRREREE 17 KAL) (currently known as Open
University of China (BIZXBEHAZ)) in January 2013.
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Mr. Lin Caihe (“Mr. Lin”), aged 34, was appointed as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Company with effect from 19 July
2024.

Mr. Lin has over 10 years of experience in auditing, financial management
and corporate finance. Mr. Lin is the company secretary and financial
controller of China New City. Prior to joining the Company, from January
2014 to May 2017, Mr. Lin worked successively at international accounting
firms such as Ernst & Young Advisory Services Limited (EY) and BDO
Limited, and was responsible for auditing. From June 2017 to December
2018, he joined CITIC Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC
Limited (stock code: 267), and he was responsible for managing investments
and cross-border merger and acquisitions on regions associated with the
Belt and Road Initiative. From January 2019 to December 2020, he worked
in Investment Banking Department of CCB International Capital Limited (&
SRR RAB FR/AF) and was responsible for corporate finance business.
From December 2020 to September 2021, he served as general manager
of Finance and Capital Division of Zhongliang Holdings Group Company
Limited (2R EBABR/AT]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2772). From October 2021 to August 2023, he served as chief
financial officer and company secretary of Seedland Smart Service Group
Limited (BH#hE ZRFEEE B RAE]) . He has over 10 years of experience
in accounting, financial management and corporate finance.

Mr. Lin obtained a master's degree in MBA jointly offered by Tsinghua
University and the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2023. He is a member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA).
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Report of the Directors

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, value-added services mainly to property developers and community
value-added services in the PRC. An analysis of the principal activities of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company’s Shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange since the Listing Date.

Net proceeds from the Global Offering received by the Company were
approximately HK$91.7 million with 126,668,000 new ordinary Shares
issued. The Company also received net proceeds of HK$12.2 million
with 10,746,000 ordinary Shares issued from the partial exercise of Over-
allotment Option.

The total amount of net proceeds from the Global Offering and the partial
exercise of Over-allotment Option of approximately HK$104 million are
proposed to be used for the purposes and in the amounts (adjusted on pro
rata basis based on the actual net proceeds) as disclosed in the Prospectus.

The Company has adopted a cautious approach in using the net proceeds
from the Global Offering, and expects to fully use the remaining balance of
the net proceeds by December 2025. The Company has kept the remaining
balance of the net proceeds in the current account of the Company.
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Net Proceeds (HK$ million)
FERERE (BEHET)

Percentage Available Used
Purpose B BAL AEA E8A
as at as at

Remaining
balance
expected to be

Unused Used Unused  fully used by

BB HER

REA E#A XBR  BTERNEHR

as at as at as at

1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2023 2023
120235 R2023%F
1A1H 12R31H

2023 2024 2024

R2023F  [R2024%F  JR2024F
12831 12A31H  12R31H

Strategic acquisitions and REMRBREE 55.0% 57.2 0 57.2 0 572 By December 2025
investments 1202512 [ERI

Invest and upgrade in hardware & E R FRAAT 30.0% 31.2 0.34 30.86 35 27.7 By December 2025
and software for the BEBEEZHE 142025512 &A1
development of communities 2 EFrE
across the projects the REEH
Company manages

Enrich the service offerings, ~ BAZXEEHEIEE 15.0% 15.6 02 15.4 1.7 139 By December 2025
scale and efficiency of RBEM R 202512 B JEAT
the Group’s community EE HE
value-added services Py ES

Total CE 100% 104 0.54 103.46 52 98.8

RESULTS E 4

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 79 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB1.89 cents
per Share (2023: RMB2.45 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The final dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on 5 June 2025 and will be paid on or before
30 July 2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 19 June 2025.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the year.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report

REBEBE2024F12831H ILFENES
ERAERFIBZEHETEREMEE
Wz 5k o

REARR S

EEORENEE024FE12831HIEEE
TRERBRESRARKE1.897 (20234 :
ANR#2.45%) o ILREAIR B AL B R
20256 A HRTT ZREBFEAT L
EFEEE MR 2025F 78308 8 2 A
TRAT T 120256 F190 25 A AT RE L
MAYARER -

FR HERENEARDERRERTFRE



Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend is the embodiment of the operational capability of the
Company, which is also a commitment to share the results of the Company’s
growth with all Shareholders. The payment and the amount of dividends
(if any) depend on our results of operation, cash flows, financial position,
future prospects, and other factors that we may consider relevant. Pursuant
to the dividend policy of the Company disclosed in the Prospectus, and
combined with the payments of the dividends after Listing, we intend to
pay dividends in the amount of not less than 25% of our profit after tax for
each year. Annual dividend is subject to the approval of general meeting of
shareholders. The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the Articles of
Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group
may be facing, a discussion on the Group’s future business development
and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period
using key financial performance indicators are contained in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 29 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and environmental
protection. We spare no effort in making the most out of resources in our
business. Laws and regulations in terms of environment and health are
strictly complied with. Meanwhile, the Group holds various activities to
promote environmental protection in our business. Our goal is to educate
proprietors and all walks of life on creating a green city for the future. The
Group has completed its 2024 Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report which contains our ESG information in 2024 and the
requirements under the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. The ESG report of the
Company for 2024 will be published at the same time as the publication of
this annual report on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.zazhsh.com).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory compliance and
the risk of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations. To the best
of the Board’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on page 152 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue from Zhong An Group
contributed 20.8% (2023: 24.7%) to the Group’s revenue. Other than the
revenue from Zhong An Group, no revenue derived from sales to a single
customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 40.2% (2023: 33.1%) of the Group’s
total purchases and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amount to 53.6% (2023: 71%) of the purchases from the five largest
suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
or any Shareholders (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Company and the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of Company share capital movements during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Reporting Period are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements and page 82 of this annual report under the section headed
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for distribution

(including share premium and retained earnings of the Company), amounted
to approximately RMB273.7 million (31 December 2023: RMB250.2 million).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Zhongan (Chairman)
Ms. Ding Shuchun (Chief Executive Officer)

(newly appointed with effect on 18 January 2025)
Mr. Sun Zhihua (Vice Chairman, Co-chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yang Guang (resigned with effect on 18 January 2025)
Mr. Ding Lei
Ms. Xu Jianying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liang Xinjun
Mr. Chung Chong Sun
Mr. Chiu Ngam

In accordance with Article 26.3 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Ding Shu
Chun, who was appointed as an executive Director on 18 January 2025 shall
retire and, and being eligible, has offered herself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with Article 26.4 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Sun Zhihua,
Mr. Chung Chong Sun and Mr. Liang Xinjun shall retire by rotation, and being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
Company’s circular to the Shareholders dated 28 April 2025.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are set out on pages 48 to 58 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be
independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an appointment
letter with the Company for a term of three years, which may be renewable
automatically subject to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or entity connected
with the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company was entered into or existed during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF
NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the annual confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance in 2024 with the non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition issued to the Company
in 2024. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up to review the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals
during the Reporting Period are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company are
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The main business of the Company is conducted in China, and for this
purpose, in accordance with the applicable Chinese laws, we participate in
a social insurance plan (including pension insurance) (the “Social Security
Plan”) organized by the Chinese government. Under the Social Security
Plan, employers and employees must make contributions at a specified rate
by relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group also participates in pension or similar
plans for all its eligible overseas employees in accordance with local laws:
(i) the Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong, and contribution is made by each
of the employer and the employee to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
monthly income and the maximum total contribution is HK$3,000 per month.

The Group’s contributions to the Social Security Plan and the MPF Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. During the Reporting Period,
there were neither contribution forfeited by the Group nor had there been
any utilisation of such forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions.
As at 31 December 2024, there were no forfeited contributions which
were available for utilisation by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions to the Social Security Plan and the MPF Scheme.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 20 January
2025, whereby Mr. Yang Guang resigned as an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 18 January 2025, and
Ms. Ding Shuchun was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
18 January 2025.

Further reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25
February 2025, whereby Ms. Ding Shuchun was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company and Mr. Sun Zhihua was appointed as the
co-chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 25 February 2025.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, save as disclosed above, there
is no other change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(i) Interest in Shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest interested” interest
AR R R4S

By RmtE B8 8" BALE

Mr. Shi Interest in controlled corporation® 380,000,000 (L) 73.4%

ifiatas RREGEE N #E T

Notes: Mzt -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. (1) FELARZALRERONGES -

2) These Shares are held by Zhong An BVI which is wholly-owned by Zhong
An. Zhong An is owned as to approximately 57.89% by Whole Good,
which is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Shi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Shi is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Zhong An BVI is
interested.
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(ii) Interest in associated corporations of the
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(i) EEAFEEEEFNEDR

Company
Approximate
Name of Name of associated Number of Shares  percentage of
Director corporation Nature of interest interested” interest
BRI Rz RIBEAY
EE Y L YNGR =S R &Y Bat
Mr. Shi Zhong An Interest in controlled corporation? 3,262,411,200 (L) 57.89%
i ML EREGEENER?
CNC Interest in controlled corporation® 1,358,859,594 (L) 67.58%
PRI EREHEENERC
Whole Good Beneficial owner 1L 100%
2 BmEEA
Notes: Kzt
(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. 1)  FEILARZALREONEE

(2) These shares are held by Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi is
deemed to be interested in the shares of Zhong An in which Whole Good
is interested.

) Among these 1,358,859,594 shares of CNC, 1,327,556,000 shares are
held by Ideal World, which is wholly-owned by Zhong An. Zhong An is
owned as to approximately 57.89% by Whole Good, which is directly
wholly-owned by Mr. Shi. In addition, 31,303,594 Shares are held by
Whole Good. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Shi is deemed to be interested in
the shares in which each of Ideal World and Whole Good is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

@ ZEROBZ2FESR -REGESKR
HERG) R ERR AN 2T
ARG RLERDPER D

@) REEFBEFMIHET,358,859,594
R F > ldeal WorldH A
1,327,556,0000% B&% 1% » Ideal World
HARZEERB 2UHERARL
#57.89% MR > 2T HMILE
BEE2EER I 2BFAB
31,303,594 B 1D - IRIK(EHF K
HAERE ) > Mt E AR deal
WorldK 21 & B A @ RH F
AR

bR L PR EEE SN > 102024128318 » #f
BEFUEARDRSTHAEBRERFH
HAAHOEE (EE R (EHRBERFRM) $BXV
EB) BB ABRARR P U ERE T BARE
(GB35 M BRE 1R GI) EXVER 7 5853 BF A
SRR KRB RES A (BERE
(BHERBERG) NZFHRREREF
HERBEAENRDERKR)  HELRER
BRI (BHF R BRG] SB362F AT H =
NELMA HRERETRANEERAT
R B X P BV IR R B3 A o

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR

67



Report of the Directors (Continued)

ERTHRS (@)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

x
F

=15 Be tE A AR 15 FR BY

Az

£ &2

Bk K

o

mp 7%

2
3V

122024F 128310 > MEHFAAN > THAL

(LFFEFHEAADERSTHRAR) KRMH
FARARMD P ERRE GEHFRAERM)
EXVEB2RINEEM A A KBLEE
SERAERBRBEGEFRIERP) FH3361%
AFHEEZELMRZEEIRE !

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested” interest
BmEEEN R HIME4Y

EEAE ALTis s b=l B

Zhong An BVI Beneficial owner 380,000,000 (L) 73.4%

RZBVI Bm#EAA

Zhong An® Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000 (L) 73.4%

R EREHEENER

Whole Good Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000 (L) 73.4%

S5 EREHEENER

Mr. Shi Interest in controlled corporation 380,000,000 (L) 73.4%

e EREHEENER

Notes: st :

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. (1) FEILUARZALRERONEE-

) Zhong An BVI is wholly-owned by Zhong An. Zhong An is owned as to
approximately 57.89% by Whole Good, which is directly wholly-owned by Mr.
Shi. By virtue of the SFO, each of Zhong An BVI, Zhong An, Whole Good and
Mr. Shi is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Zhong An BVI is
interested.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, no person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had registered an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director and officer of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses,
including legal expenses, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their functions other than
such liability (if any) that they may incur by reason of their own actual fraud or
wilful default.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business partners are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to establishing
a close and caring relationship with its employees, providing quality services
to its customers and enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Zhong An is one of our Controlling Shareholders, which indirectly owns
approximately 57.89% of the Group’s share capital and CNC is indirectly
held as to approximately 66.02% by Zhong An as of the date of this annual
report and is therefore an associate of Zhong An. CNC is also directly held
as to approximately 1.56% by Whole Good. Therefore, each of Zhong An
and its associates and CNC and its associates is a connected person of the
Company.

Reference is made to the section headed “Connected Transactions” of the
Prospectus in relation to, among other things, the continuing connected
transactions of the Group with each of Zhong An and CNC under the existing
framework agreements. As the term of the existing framework agreements
expired on 31 December 2024, the Company entered into the following non-
exempt continuing connected transactions:
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Provision of car parking space sales agency services

On 6 December 2024, the Company entered into a renewed car parking
space sales agency services framework agreement with each of Zhong An
and CNC which will expire on 31 December 2027, pursuant to which our
Group would provide agency services for the sales of unsold car parking
space, including marketing and advertising services, on an exclusive basis,
for such unsold car parking space owned by Zhong An and its associates
(excluding CNC Connected Persons) (‘Remaining Zhong An Connected
Person(s)”), and CNC and its associates (“CNC Connected Person(s),
together with the Remaining Zhong An Connected Person(s), the “Zhong
An Connected Persons”) and located at property projects of them that
are currently managed by us or expected to be provided for the Group’s
management. The specific service fees concerned and other relevant matters
will be negotiated by the relevant parties in good faith.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed car
parking space sales agency services framework agreement by the Remaining
Zhong An Connected Persons shall be RMB67.0 million, RMB72.0 million
and RMB81.0 million for the three years ending 31 December 2027.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed car
parking space sales agency services framework agreement by the CNC
Connected Persons shall be RMB15.0 million, RMB14.0 million and
RMB12.0 million for the three years ending 31 December 2027.

Provision of property management services

On 6 December 2024, the Group has entered into a renewed provision of
property management services framework agreement with each of Zhong
An and CNC which will expire on 31 December 2027, pursuant to which
our Group would provide property management services to the Remaining
Zhong An Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons in
respect of residential and non-residential property units that are unsold or
undelivered. The specific service fees concerned and other relevant matters
will be negotiated by the relevant parties in good faith.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed property
management services framework agreement by the Remaining Zhong
An Connected Persons shall be RMB23.0 million, RMB25.0 million and
RMB40.0 million for the three years ending 31 December 2027.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed property
management services framework agreement by the CNC Connected
Persons shall be RMB15.0 million, RMB14.0 million and RMB13.0 million for
the three years ending 31 December 2027.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Provision of value-added services

On 6 December 2024, the Group has entered into a renewed value-added
services framework agreement with each of Zhong An and CNC which will
expire on 31 December 2027, pursuant to which pursuant to which our
Group would provide value-added services to the Remaining Zhong An
Connected Persons and the CNC Connected Persons. The specific service
fees concerned and other relevant matters will be negotiated by the relevant
parties in good faith.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed
value-added services framework agreement by the Remaining Zhong
An Connected Persons shall be RMB81.0 million, RMB88.0 million and
RMB91.0 million for the three years ending 31 December 2027.

The cap amounts payable to the Group in respect of the renewed
value-added services framework agreement by the CNC Connected Persons
shall be RMB22.0 million, RMB21.0 million and RMB22.0 million for the three
years ending 31 December 2027.

The above transactions are regarded as “continuing connected transactions”
and “connected transactions” of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its
business, on normal commercial term or better and in accordance with the
terms of the respective agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The board of Directors confirmed that a Group’s auditor has
confirmed the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” in this Report of Directors, during the Reporting Period,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has entered into any contract
of significance or material contract with the controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, and there is no entering
into of any material contract in respect of the services provided by the
controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee and adopted the terms of
reference which complied with the CG Code. The chairperson of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chung Chong Sun. The other members are Mr. Liang
Xinjun and Mr. Chiu Ngam. The Audit Committee comprised all of the three
independent non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed
and discussed with the management of the Group the unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial information of the Company for the
Reporting Period, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed financial related matters. The Audit Committee
has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and the internal
control systems of the Company, and considers the risk management and
internal control systems to be effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee had, together with the management and Auditor,
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 30 to 47 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
Shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by
the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules, was held by
the public at all times during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Company has not changed in the past three years. Ernst
& Young was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December
2024. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Shi Zhongan
Chairman

Hangzhou, 27 March 2025
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young BB ERR
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:x

To the shareholders of Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

R—EE2718

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong An
Intelligent Living Service Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Bz R & (48)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matter matter
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Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

BB G RN RGRAE

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

As at 31 December 2024, the net carrying amount
of the trade receivables of the Group was RMB153.3

Our audit procedures to assess the provision
for expected credit losses on trade receivables

million, including the gross amount of RMB174.1 included:
milion and the allowance for impairment of RMB20.8
million. (i)

We identified the assessment of expected credit
losses on trade receivables as a key audit matter due

to the significance of the trade receivables balance

to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant judgement exercised by management

in estimating the expected credit losses for trade (il
receivables with the consideration of the existence of
disputes, historical payment records, forward-looking
factors and any other available information that may
impact the estimated expected credit losses.

i)

2024 Annual Report

obtaining an understanding of how
management assessed the expected
credit losses for trade receivables, and
evaluating the key controls relating to
the monitoring of the recoverability of
trade receivables;

evaluating and testing the
methodologies and data/parameters
used by management, including
historical loss information, forward-
looking factors and the expected loss
rate;

executing analytical review procedures
by analysing the fluctuations of
significant outstanding balances and
trade receivable turnover days;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

B\ e S (48)

TEEREE (@

How our audit addressed the key audit EMNERNMEETES
Key audit matter matter TEEREE HEE
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables BN E G IR E B R
Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3and 15t0  (v) testing, on a sampling basis, the HEREHERAHMER (v BEEEEHIERS
the consolidated financial statements. subsequent settlement of trade RMIFEIRK 150 Wi B AR R EB BE S A
receivables to cash receipts and the A ERE ZRTE
related supporting documentation; BREEER;
(v) testing, on a sampling basis, the ageing () HREEREREM
profile of trade receivables as at 31 HENHEERHE
December 2024 used in the calculation eI E 2 R TR E R
of the allowance for impairment of trade H120245E12831
receivables to sales invoices and other HEWE ZERNER

relevant documents; and

(vi) assessing the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in the financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Bz R & (48)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheung Ng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EHEmREMEENER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024512831HIEEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Haz ARBFiT NEETFT
REVENUE WA (5} 412,238 351,133
Cost of sales HE A (291,956) (232,319)
GROSS PROFIT EF 120,282 118,814
Other income Haug A 5 4,038 3,892
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHES (804) =
Administrative expenses THR% (60,092) (49,545)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & FLE & B (B 18358 (10,671) (3,846)
Share of losses of an associate DME—EBHE AR EE (23) =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI AT FI 6 52,730 69,315
Income tax expense FrigfAs 9 (15,389) (19,891)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRHHE 37,341 49,424
Profit attributable to: MTFALREEFE :
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ TN 38,067 49,346
Non-controlling interests IRV (726) 78
37,341 49,424
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FEEERRT
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted BEARE#E 11 RMB7.4 cents RMB11.2 cents
AR #7.45 AE#&11.259
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  SF£RZ2HE 425 (%)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 37,341 49,424
Total comprehensive income MTFATEGEZEWGRAERE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent NEEE A 38,067 49,346
Non-controlling interests JEPERG R (726) 78
37,341 49,424
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"Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBIR AR

Year ended 31 December 2024
B E2024F12H31HILEE

31 December

31 December

2024 2023
2024%12H31H 2023F12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
HiaE ARBFT NEETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property and equipment EERRHE 12 4,348 4,401
Intangible assets BLEE 70 106
Investment in an associate R—REBRE R BNRE 57 =
Deferred tax assets RIEMIBEE 13 5,051 3,196
Total non-current assets WIEREEE 9,526 7,703
CURRENT ASSETS TRENE E
Inventories =) 14 719 224
Trade receivables FEUR B 5 BR RN 15 153,294 116,534
Due from related companies FEWAE RE A B FIB 24 104,625 54,555
Prepayments, other receivables af R Efth e EIE
and other assets REMEE 16 61,602 53,763
Cash and cash equivalents BENIREEEY 17 137,178 177,306
Pledged deposits BEIRIEER 17 2,902 =
Total current assets WREEE 460,320 402,382
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAaE
Trade payables FET B 3 8RR 18 24,530 1,868
Other payables, deposits received HMEARIE  BliESE
and accruals IEstE R 19 57,433 48,844
Contract liabilities HHEE 20 49,950 51,753
Tax payable I IRIE 9 32,980 31,599
Deferred tax liabilities RILHRIEEE 13 2,241 1,265
Total current liabilities wrEghamE 167,134 135,329
NET CURRENT ASSETS TRENE EIPEE 293,186 267,053
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERTEEARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 302,712 274,756
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAaE
Contract liabilities HHEE 20 3,369 =
Total non-current liabilities HWIERHERE 3,369 =
NET ASSETS BPEE 299,343 274,756
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

BHMBR AR (B)

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE20245F12B31HIEEFE
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
2024%F128318 2023%12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
gz AREFIT ANEEFT
EQUITY Hw
Equity attributable to owners of the B AT ERE AELER
parent
Share capital RN 21 4,731 4,731
Reserves =] 22 293,491 268,178
298,222 272,909
Non-controlling interests JERERG R 1,121 1,847
TOTAL EQUITY R 299,343 274,756
Ding Shuchun Xu Jianying EE EF
Director Director TEEH R
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-Ebnsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SHEREER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HZE2024512831HIEEE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEA AR
Non-
Share Capital Statutory Retained controlling
capital reserve* reserve* earnings* Total interests  Total equity
BEx  EfRRE EERE SENE B JRERHEG sk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETFT ARBEFT AREFT ARBETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Wzt21) (hizt22) (Hatzz)
As at 1 January 2023 1202351818 = (61,823) 14,142 139,178 91,497 1,769 93,266
Profit for the year and total FERAERENZERGEE
comprehensive income for the year - - - 49,346 49,346 78 49,424
Capitalisation issue BARMEET 3,475 (3.475) = = = = =
Proceeds from initial public offering B RAREEFRBIIE 1,158 135,510 - - 136,668 - 136,668
Exercise of the over-allotment option 715 BZAE AR 12 98 11,496 - - 11,594 = 11,594
Payment for listing expenses Y EHH% - (16,196) - - (16,196) - (16,196)
Transfer from retained earnings ERERENR - - 3,809 (3,809) - - -
As at 31 December 2023 and #20235126318 &
1 January 2024 202451818 4,731 65,512 17,951 184,715 272,909 1,847 274,756
Profit for the year and total ERFIERENZERREE
comprehensive income for the year - - - 38,067 38,067 (726) 37,341
Final 2023 dividend declared BER0BERERE = = = (12,714) (12,714) = (12,714)
Dividend paid to BAFERRERE
a non-controlling shareholder - - - (40) (40) - (40)
Transfer from retained earnings BEEERENE - - 1,835 (1,835) - - -
As at 31 December 2024 120245128310 4,731 65,512 19,786 208,193 298,222 1,121 299,343

* These reserve accounts comprise the total consolidated reserves of * ZEHHBRBE BEN20245F KX2023F12
RMB293,491,000 and RMB268,178,000 in the consolidated statement of B31EEHMBRARANE HEHERE
financial position as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, respectively. DRA AR 293,491,000t e AR #E

268,178,0007T °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHIRERER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE20245F12831HIEEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Haz ARBFiT NEETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEFFHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax By =IEIRES 52,730 69,315
Adjustments for: FHE
Share of losses of an associate ME—REBE A EEE 23 =
Depreciation of items of property and BEEKRZEEBITE
equipment 6 896 942
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERHE 6 36 34
Impairment of trade receivables FEUR B8 5 BR TR (E 6 7,971 3,846
Impairment of other receivables HAEW IR E 6 2,700 =
64,356 74,137
Increase in inventories EFEE (495) (155)
Increase in trade receivables FEUR & 5 BRFRIE N (44,731) (30,983)
Increase in prepayments, BT EfhEWENIE K
other receivables and other assets HE E1g (10,539) (7,002)
Increase in amounts due from related FE UK B Bt A B FRIB IS D
companies (50,070) (44,386)
Increase in trade payables FE(T B 5 BRFRIE 22,662 267
Increase in other payables, deposits HMEMRIE - BElEE R
received and accruals et & A IE 8,589 6,331
Increase in contract liabilities SHaEEN 1,566 11,635
Increase in pledged deposits BIREERIEM (2,902) =
Cash (used in)/generated from REEY BR) EEXNRE
operations (11,564) 9,844
Income tax paid BEATFTEMR (14,887) (8,522)
Net cash flows (used in)/ SRR GER) S EEW
from operating activities REREFE (26,451) 1,322
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KREEHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property and BEYMEKRREEB
equipment (843) (732)
Investment in an associate R—REBRE A BNRE (80) =
Purchase of intangible assets BEERTEE = (74)
Net cash flows used in investing KREEHERANRERERE
activities (923) (806)

x
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BHAETRER B
Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F12831H LEE

2024 2023
20245 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Haz ARBFiT NEETFT
Net cash flows used in investing KERSHFEANIRS RS BEE
activities (923) (806)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REEFHEENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from initial public offering BRAMEBEMSHIE - 148,262
Payment for listing expenses X = (16,196)
Dividend paid BETIRE (12,714) -
Dividend paid to a non-controlling BEIEERIKRERE
shareholder (40) =
Net cash flows (used in)/from BHEEE) GEH) S EEM
financing activities REFLE (12,754) 132,066
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERREZEEY (RL)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EhnEEa (40,128) 132,582
Cash and cash equivalents at FVIRERIREEEY
beginning of year 177,306 44,724
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Z£XE&RIEEZEY
END OF YEAR 137,178 177,306
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERIRESLEMERIF
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 17 137,178 177,306
Cash and cash equivalents as stated SHEELFHERK
in the consolidated statement AHMBRARFEINRER
of cash flows and consolidated REEEY
statement of financial position 137,178 177,306
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 16 November 2020. The registered office address of the
Company is the Offices of Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1025 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are members of Zhong An
Group Limited (“Zhong An”) and its subsidiaries (“Zhong An Group”).
Zhong An, the shares of which have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since November 2007, is the holding company of Zhong An Group.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of property
management services, value-added services mainly to property
developers and community value-added services in Mainland China.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

R TR R 5L

31 December 2024
2024F12H31H

REREEEH

RATIRR2020F11B16HEHEE
EEMMUIAEREAB] AR F
B9 5 3% 5B BR i HE A Offices of Vistra
(Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802
West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1025 Cayman lIslands ©

KRB A—BREZERAT - ARF
REMB AR BEIAERH) BSRE
EEARRE (MRZ) RENBERF
(MRZ&EH) WRERB - RZ (H
RMHEB2007F 11 AREEBHER
SFTARAT (THIPR) TR ET) &
ML EEPIER AT -

AEETERFENREYEEE
BE TBEARNEREBNLE
AR5 Rt B AR o
BRMEBATKNER

KFABEEMBABFEUT :

Place and date of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable  Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML IR BRITEER/ AT
oy MR EH ERAEE REBEDLE ETEEH
Throng Unity Service Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% Investment holding
(REFRBERRR) 13 November 2020
TRERBARAE REBRELHE 1E7T 100%  REER
2020118136
Zhong An Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
RZEBERAA) 16 November 2020
REEBFRAHE &7820204£11816H 18T 100%  BEER
Zhejiang Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 18 November 1998
IRZMERBERAF)
IR ERBERAE B/ HRER AR 100,000,0007% 100% ¥R
1998%11518H

REERLEERSERLAT
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

REREBREF (&)

BRI BARNER (&)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
SRR IR BRITEER FRFIEL
ais ES R A=) MR AEE REBSLE TEEH
Anhui Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 24 November 2003
(ZHUREMEEERRAT)
ZHRENEEEERAE HEL/ Bl AR 3,000,0007¢ 100%  MERE
2003F11824H
Hefei Green Harbor Property PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 1 August 2007
(BRRGeEBENEER
BRAT)
ARG eBEEEEERAT  FE/FERM AR 500,0007T 100%  MIERE
2007%8A1H
Zhejiang Chengcheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 80%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 14 January 2009
(IR ERBERAR)
LA ERBERAE HE,RER M AR #10,000,0007T 80%  MERE
200918148
Huaibei Zhonghong Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90%  Property management
Senvice Co., Ltd. 30 March 2020
(BLEREMERBERAR)
ELRENERBERAE HE,RER M AR 1,000,0007T 0%  MERE
202053H30H
Zhejiang Runzhou Property PRC/Mainland China RMB13,080,000 100%  Property management
Senvices Co., Ltd. 27 November 2014
(T ENMERBEERAR)
HLENERBERAE HE,RER M AR 113,080,0007T 100%  MIERE
2014F11827H
Hangzhou Zhonghong Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Property management
Senvice Co., Ltd. 18 November 2020
MNRENERBEERAR)
MINRENERBERAE HE,RER M AR 1,000,0007T 100%  MIERE
2020F11818H

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

REREBREF (&)

BRI B ARNER (&)

Place and date of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML IR BRETEER FAFEM
kY ] Rk A8 MR AEE REBSL TEEH
Yuyao Zhongli Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 24 November 2020
EURNIMEERERRE)
RRBNMEEEBERAT HE,/ RE R AR #5,000,0007T 100%  YpEEE
20205115248
Ningbo Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 3 November 2021
(BERZNEEERRRE)
ERRENEEEERAE RE,/ B R AR 1,000,0007T 100% ¥R
2021411 83H
Shaoxing Zhong Ming Property PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 57% Property management
Service Co., Ltd. 20 July 2022
(BERANERBERRE)
BERANERTERRASD B,/ AR i AE#500,0007T 57%  MERE
20225 7H20H
Hangzhou Zhongzhi Agricultural PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100%  Landscaping
Development Co., Ltd. 27 September 2023
INREREEREBRRE)
TINRE REERERAA RE /B R AR 3,000,0007T 100%  =EHRE
2023%F9H27H
Hangzhou Zhihe PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Property management
Management Co., Ltd 11 March 2024
MNBELEERERRAR)
MNEBLEERERAT HE,/ RE R AR #2,000,0007t 100%  WEEE
202443811H
Hangzhou Yizhu Decoration PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Property management
Engineering Co., Ltd 21 March 2024
MNBHREHTRERRE)
TINBEEHTRERAE RE /Bl AR 1,000,0007T 100%  MEERE
20244F3H21H
Hangzhou Anyue PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  E-commerce
E-commerce Co., Ltd 21 March 2024
IMNZIREFEBERAE)
MNZIREFEBERAT HE,/ RE R AE#1,000,0007T 100% BYEH
2024%3H21H

continued #/...

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR

87



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAEREERER (@)

(CONTINUED)
BB ATNER (B)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place and date of Nominal value

incorporation/ of issued Percentage of

registration and ordinary/registered  equity attributable Principal
Name place of operations share capital to the Company  activities
ML, IR BRITEER FRFIEL
ais ES R A=) MR AEE REBSLE TEEH
Hangzhou Zhong An Lancai PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Car wash services
Automobile Service Co., Ltd 22 March 2024
FINRZWE ERE
BRAT)
MINRERF R ERBBRAT HE,RER M AR #1,000,0007T 100%  LEBERH
2024%3F22H
Hangzhou Zhongdatong Network PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000 100%  Property management
Technology Co., Ltd (MR 258 11 May 2024
BREREERAR)
MNREBRERRARAR HE,RER M AR 50,0007z 100%  MEEE
2024F5811H
Taizhou Zhonghe Property Services ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 100%  Property management
Co., Ltd (ANREMERE 16 May 2024
ﬁ FRAT)
AMREMERBERAE HE,RER M AR 100,0007T 100%  MEEE
202458 16H
Hangzhou Zhongli Xunta Pet PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Pet services
Technology Co., Ltd (M RES 17 June 2024
CRNNEERAR)
MNFESTRYNEERAT  FE/FERH AR 1,000,0007T 100%  ER¥IAR™
2024%6R17H

BERR LERAIINEATWER
BNIEFEEEXRENENTER
BEEFENERBONNBEAT &
ERN REAMKNBEATNFEE
BYREBRTTR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of

the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss

of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest; and recognises the fair value of any investment
retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments’)

Amendments to
IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments’)

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to
IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of IFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional
disclosures are required for non-current liabilities that
are subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period.
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of the
amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the
Group does not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2. EHEK @

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BIEMERRERRE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING PREA TSR & 2E R
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, REBUENRZETERKIE
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial BUTEBEMEERENNHT
statements. The Group intends to apply these new and revised ST SIEET BRI S ER 5 2E Rl o
IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective. AEBEL ] & SETERE

R EER WER) £
F LKA ©
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial BEBREER HERENEIR
Statements® F1858 HE
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountabilty: BUBREEN FLARTHAELZ
Disclosures® £19%% WEAE K&
Amendments to IFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification and ERNBREED 2 TREIER
and IFRS 7 Measurement of Financial Instruments® FORMER BB
HBREER
VG4 CHIEN
Amendments to IFRS 9 and Contracts Referencing Nature-cependent BHBREEL RINBEANE
IFRS 7 Electricity? EORRERRE IR
REEAETH
ZETE
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor BEBREEN KEZLRHEL
and IAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture* F105R KB HEEELEZ
B EAENR .  AHNEELHEDR
BiIA B
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability' BREstzEs| Rz RHN
EALvA ]
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 FEFGHEEEEL  BEEMRRE
IFRS Accounting and IAS 72 B EAIEE EJFE1R
Standiards - Volume 11 HE-Z111 REHRE
ERFETR
ERIBRE
ERFE9R
BRI RS
BIE105E B
B ERETT
BT R
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 L R2025F1B18 2 & A
B EEREER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026 g R2026F1 818 2 & A
B EEREER
3 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 2 R2027F1 A1z & A
January 2027 HNEE REHBENR
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 8 woREE R G E R HRER
adoption IR
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2.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

23

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a8)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Office equipment, electronic and other devices 19.0%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the reporting period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of the
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of 10 years, which is the license period of the software.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
that are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. The Group initially
measures receivables, except for trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component, at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding and the Group has a business model to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (@ 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024

2024%F12831H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of services or goods is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those services or goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@  Property management service income

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for services provided on a monthly basis and
recognises as revenue in the amount to which the Group
has a right to invoice and that corresponds directly with
the value of performance completed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

Property management service income (Continued)

The Group charged property management fees in
respect of the property management services on a lump
sum basis. The Group acts as principal and is primarily
responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners. The Group recognises
the fees received or receivable from property owners as its
revenue and all related property management costs as its
cost of services.

Value-added services mainly to property developers

Value-added services mainly to property developers mainly
include cleaning, security and maintenance services
for pre-sale display units and sales offices of property
developers at the pre-delivery stage.

The Group agrees the price for each service with the
property developers upfront, issues the monthly bill to
the property developers which varies based on the actual
level of service completed in that month, and recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

Value-added services mainly to property developers also
include preliminary planning and design consultancy
services and pre-delivery inspection services to property
developers, which is recognised as revenue over the
period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024

2024%F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(c)

Community value-added services

The Group provides community value-added services
mainly including advertising spaces and common area
of commercial and residential property management
services. Revenue from community value-added services
is recognised when the related services are rendered as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

The Group’s community value-added service revenue also
includes income from the provision of assistance in sales
of car parking spaces to third parties, which is recognised
when the car parking spaces are transferred to the buyers
of car parking spaces.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period, but
prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess
whether the information affects the amounts that it recognises
in its financial statements. The Group will adjust the amounts
recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting
events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that
relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For
non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the Group will
not change the amounts recognised in its financial statements,
but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting events and an
estimate of their financial effects, or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made, if applicable.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

PAFsERR MIsE (8

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in the PRC. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below:

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of default, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and
amounts due from related companies is disclosed in note 15 and note
24,
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors of the Company. During the
reporting year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision
of property management services, value-added services mainly
to property developers and community value-added services to
customers. Management reviews the operating results of the Group’s
business as one operating segment for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, the chief operating decision maker of the Company regards
that there is only one segment which is used to make strategic
decisions.

Geographical information

No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue from
the external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland
China and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside
Mainland China.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue from Zhong An Group
contributed 20.76% (2023: 24.73%) to the Group’s revenue. Other
than the revenue from Zhong An Group, no revenue derived from sales
to a single customer or a group of customers under common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

REDEER
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EEEDIAETRFNATES 88
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BREFEERN AERZERHEYMEE
ER% - TEmEEERZE AL
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AREDBEREEBMERNEEE
& UL BRI D iR RIRT L 1F
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REDRERF AR FHBRRMLER
ERBIDER

HE R

AR AEERBIINIEFHRAZE
RERBIRMER > BAREEIFRE
B EME AL P B At DS > R
E27HEEK

BERXEERFNEH

HZE2024FE12831BIEEE  KBAR
2 B IR A A5 52 B U A 8920.76%
(20234 : 24.73%) °FFRERLE
B AIUR A IS » B E 20244 72023412
B31BLEEE HEXKEHE—FR
R HBEEGN—HE L HERRA
(EASEBAIUAT10%T L k-

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME WA RE MU A
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WARNDUWT :
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ANRETT

Revenue from contracts with customers ZEE&#UA

Property management services Y= EERTS 347,218 261,200
Value-added services mainly to property FTEmEEMERERN

developers BERT 36,815 58,069
Community value-added services @I ERRTS 28,205 31,864
Total 48t 412,238 351,133

n4 Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WAKRHEMIA (4B)
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEBREHWA
Disaggregated revenue information (@ DIFBWAEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2024 B E2024F 12831 HIEEE
Value-added
Property  services mainly Community
management to property value-added
services developers services Total
TEAM
BHEREEN
Types of services IRisELE MEEERS WBERYE HEEERE M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT ARETFT AREFT
Geographical market MEHIE
Mainland China HEIA 347,218 36,815 28,205 412,238
Timing of revenue recognition W A By REBR B
Revenue recognised over time BERS R RE SR A 347,218 36,815 20,414 404,447
Revenue recognised at a point in time /A S —BSRIZEFESRITA - = 7,791 7,791
Total @zt 347,218 36,815 28,205 412,238
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F 128310 IEEE
Value-added
Property services mainly Community
management to property value-added
services developers services Total
TEAM
BEHERZEEN
Types of services fR¥%EE MIEBERY BERYE  HEEERS 4zt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEEFT NEEFT ANEEFT ANEEFT
Geographical market & iz
Mainland China HEI A 261,200 58,069 31,864 351,133
Timing of revenue recognition W A B B R B
Revenue recognised over time SIS ON 261,200 58,069 20,397 339,666
Revenue recognised at a point in time 74— B ] BARESRUUA - - 11,467 11,467
Total st 261,200 58,069 31,864 351,133
REEBEERSERAT ZTTINFEER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised
in the current reporting period that were included in the contract

5.

WA B E AU A (&)
ERAHNEA (@)

(a)

DFRAER ()

TREFIRREHBEEDEA
TR REFARSHVEHE

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: &
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEBTFT
Property management services MEBIERT 49,406 36,143
Performance obligations (b) BHEFHE

For property management services, value-added services mainly
to property developers and community value-added services,
the Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to the
rights to invoices which corresponds directly with the value to
the customers of the Group’s performance to date. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these types of contracts
because for property management services and certain value-
added services mainly to property developers, the Group
recognises revenue in the amount that equals the right to invoice
which corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance to date on a monthly basis. As permitted
under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. For community value-
added services, they are rendered in a short period of time,
which is generally less than a year, and there was no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of the year.

2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WAREMEA (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEAHNKA (8)
(Continued)
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Other income Hanlg A

Interest income ISV ON 88 164
Government grants* BT 435 ™ 3,140 3,377
Others Hith 810 351
Total 485t 4,038 3,892

The government grants are related to expenses and recognised in profit

or loss upon receipt of these grants. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

N BT A7 B SR R S AR AR B
AR IR S - R E AL

contingencies relating to these grants. WMAREMNEGRNAESE
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PR¥REIFIE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AEEFRRAFIEENRTIIEIE
2024 2023
20244 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iit=3 ARETFT ABBFT
Cost of services provided* B HARFE A 291,956 232,319
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE ZERFRVE 15 7,971 3,846
Impairment of other receivables HthEWFIERE 16 2,700 -
Depreciation of items of property FEERZBHEEITE
and equipment 12 896 942
Amortisation of intangible assets & EEEHY 36 34
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIMA (FEEEEK
and chief executive’s FETHAEME
remuneration (note 7)): (MFE7)) :
Wages and salaries T & R 174,136 173,103
Pension scheme contributions BB B HA
and social welfare** R 25,287 28,480
Total “act 199,423 201,583
Listing expenses IHhRx = 4,311
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BLEMEN & 1,434 1,415

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR nz



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

* Amounts of RMB165,365,000 and RMB178,767,000 of staff costs were
included in “Cost of services provided” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023, respectively.

* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

PRISAIF)HE (&)

* B E20244F %2023F12831H LLE
ER AR1165,365,000 kAR
#5178,767,0007c B9 8 TR A 72 Bl 5t
AGHEZEREMEEREFERTH
EIRMARFE A o

o BEDRRIHAREEAERER
EERBIELD B Al HRRKF -

EFRFETHRAESME
1R EHRA BB ABRAIE83(1)

(@)~ (o)~ ) RMEUR AT WEES
FmER) RAF2H FREERE

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as BITHRASMESREUT :
follows:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ANE¥FT
Fees: W
Directors g 900 900
Other emoluments: HAanEreN -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMREYER 1,921 3,573
Performance related bonuses FIRMEATEAL 663 449
Pension scheme contributions BRIKEETBIMHR 89 110
Subtotal Y- 2,673 4,132
Total 4t 3,573 5,032

ns Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 7. EERIFETHAEGME
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) =)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BWILIFRITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FREMBIENITESNE
year were as follows: FWF -
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT ANERETT

Fees: WE
Mr. Chung Chong Sun BRI TE 300 300
Mr. Liang Xinjun REERE 300 300
Mr. Chiu Ngam [eP=pias 300 300
Total et 900 900
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent AEETEROBIUENITES
non-executive directors during the year (2023: Nil). S EAMENE (20234 © ) ©
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITEFERFTETHA
8
Pension
Salaries, Scheme
allowances Performance Contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
BkE
e EME RE  HEMEERR

ik BMER HRATEAL LB kA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBFR ARBFT AREFT ARETT ARETR

2024 20244
Executive directors: HITEE !
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEELE - - - - -
Mr. Yang Guang() B E() - 1,179 391 34 1,604
Mr. Ding Lei TEEE - 354 85 18 457
Ms. Xu Jianying HEBgT - 388 187 37 612
Subtotal &t - 1,921 663 89 2,673
Chief executive and ZTRASR

executive director: HITEE .
Mr. Shi Zhongan Jiilakrmes - - - = =
Total 4act - 1,921 663 89 2,673

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR mno
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S SEERFIETHAGME
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (%)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITEEREEITHA
(Continued) 8 (8)
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances  Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
BH*E
e V2R e sTEIERUR
wE EMEF HERATEAL HEEH Bil4a%8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEBEFT ANRBEFT AEBEFT AEBEFT ARETFT
2023 20235
Executive directors: HITEE!
Mr. Sun Zhihua BEELE - 1,040 - - 1,040
Mr. Yang Guang() IS E() - 1,261 - 34 1,295
Mr. Ding Leii) TR %) = 444 141 15 600
Mr. Lu Jianguoiii) & 7 B 5t A i) - 397 150 - 547
Ms. Xu Jianying rEEgt - 431 158 61 650
Subtotal INET - 3,573 449 110 4,132
Chief executive and TETHRAER
executive director: HITESE
Mr. Shi Zhongan ik mes - - - - =
Total Wt - 3,573 449 110 4,132
Notes: Vo=
0] Mr. Yang Guang was appointed as an executive director of the 0] B E 2023585250 %

Company on 25 August 2023 and resigned as an executive
director of the Company on 18 January 2025.

(i) Mr. Ding Lei was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 25 August 2023.

(iii) Mr. Lu Jianguo resigned as an executive director of the Company
on 25 August 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2023: Nil).

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2023:
four) executive directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 7 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2023:
one) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2024, respectively, are as follows:

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

IBEEHAL

ENLLABREHFALTARABHERS

(2023%F : M%) MITES > El+
HEEHN EXME - ERNBE =S
(20234 | —%) D HIRE E20234F
K2024F 12831 H IEEE W IEAAF]
BERFETHAENRSHFALHN
BB

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABEFT ANE¥FiT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B REYET 1,605 1,077

Performance related bonuses FIFMERATEAL 258 =
Pension scheme contributions and BARETEHR R EER

social welfare 88 16

Total 485t 1,951 1,093

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

FEERIFETBITHAERSHHE
EZMEETIRERENZ AN
T

Number of employees

EBEAH

2024 2023

20244 20234

Nil to HK$500,000 ZZE500,0005 70 - -
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 75 %= 1,000,0007 7T 3 =
Over HK$1,000,001 #83E1,000,0013E 7T - 1
Total 4Bt 3 1

RREBEERSAMAT S EER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

9. INCOME TAX 9. FR1FM
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising REBEBEMEAEEREQNBMER
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group REEBMMERB I EREEL R
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the BERRER AHEN RN MMEE
Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Company and the Group’s subsidiary PRS- IRIEHEHE R HEBELE
incorporated in the BVI is not subject to any income tax. The Group’s ERNRRN XA RAERNE
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax as BRLZEESFMAIINNE AR ESE
it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the BMERPMER -AREAEERER
year. R E AR IR AR NEE R
EBTEMRILBIHI B A B EARAAT
(Sl
PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% on RECEMESREAEERBENE R
the taxable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. B SRR I M) B925%H0 1 o
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Current tax: BRERTRIAE -

PRC corporate income tax AR 1 2P ER 16,268 19,587
Deferred tax (note 13) EEFRTE (MF5E13) (879) 304
Total tax charge for the year FRRIES B85 15,389 19,891
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

FRiSH (48)

BEBEARBDRERZHWEABFAE
ENEREREEM KRS ERAFE
BRARBEMBARBEERASRE
BHFRSMERHERNT

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 9.

A reconciliation of tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory tax rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense at
the effective income tax rate is as follows:

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBHEFT ANEIEFT

Profit before tax B2 AT Al 52,730 69,315

Tax at the statutory tax rate FEEMEENRIE 13,183 17,329
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or BERMAM A EEAER

enacted by local authority RIER=E 790 803

Withholding tax FEINAR 976 1,265

Tax losses not recognised KEERMIBEEE 308 229

Expenses not deductible for tax NEIEL 2 132 265

Tax charge at the Group’s effective AEBRBERREN
income tax rate FriSiIER 15,389 19,891

REHPBRRROBLRIELS

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents:

2024 2023
20245 2023%
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBHEFT ANEEFT
PRC corporate income tax payable FES PR EFTSR 32,980 31,599
DIVIDENDS 10. ig82
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT
Proposed final - RMB1.89 cent BEARP-SREERARKE
(2023: RMB2.45 cent) per ordinary share 1.8973 (2023%F | AR
2.45%3) 9,761 12,653

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

FFEERZAPREACERATRE
RERRTHRRBERG EHE-

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. SAFEERFEARKES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 2 F
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the Nt EEREABIMS  SRE
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of AEBAREBESADEERRERE
RMB38,067,000 (2023: RMB49,346,000), and the weighted average ANFELF RiE A A R #38,067,0007T
number of ordinary shares of 517,414,000 (2023: 441,700,225), for (20234 : AR ¥49,346,0007T) >
the purpose of computing basic earnings per share. The number im AR N 9 $4517,414,000
of ordinary shares ended 31 December 2023 has been adjusted & (20234 : 441,700,2250%) st & o
retrospectively for the effect of the issues relating to the capitalisation B E2023F12A31HIEEENEE
issue in July 2023 with 379,999,999 shares, and as if the capitalisation BHBEERIE2023F7H EARCE#T
issues had been completed on 1 January 2022. 379,999,9998% B& 10 BIAE BE R 21T
B MEEALEITEN2022
F1A185EM -
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: AEESREABMILER
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEEFT
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BAREREKREEFTEA
holders of the parent FE(EF 38,067 49,346
Number of shares
K &E
2024 2023
20244 20234
Shares 4]
Weighted average number of FRDETEERMNETISH
ordinary shares in issue during the year 517,414,000 441,700,225

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 12. EERSE
Office
equipment,
electronic and Motor
other devices Machinery vehicles Total
MAERE
B Rk
Hithk e RE FEhy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
31 December 2024 2024%12831H
At 1 January 2024: 1202451818 -
Cost RAE 4,876 4,649 820 10,345
Accumulated depreciation REHNE (3,576) (1,740) (628) (5,944)
Net carrying amount REVEE 1,300 2,909 192 4,401
At 1 January 2024, R2024F181H
net of accumulated depreciation MRRTINE 1,300 2,909 192 4,401
Additions RE 621 169 53 843
Depreciation provided during the year ~— FERITE R (535) (322) (39) (896)
At 31 December 2024, 12024128318 »
net of accumulated depreciation MRRTINE 1,386 2,756 206 4,348
31 December 2024: 20245128318 :
Cost RRAE 5,497 4,818 873 11,188
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (4,111) (2,062) (667) (6,840)
Net carrying amount IREFE 1,386 2,756 206 4,348

x
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

ISR R ML () N
31 December 2024 k ' 1
20245E128531H

12. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 12. BEER®E (B

Office
equipment,
electronic and
other devices Machinery ~ Motor vehicles Total
WAERME
Bk
Hzg T Pkl Ly
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEREBFT ABEFT ANRBEFT ANEREFT
31 December 2023 2023%F12831H
At 1 January 2023: 1R2023F1B1H !
Cost B A {E 4,567 4,236 810 9,613
Accumulated depreciation REHNE (3,024) (1,393) (585) (5,002)
Net carrying amount REVEE 1,543 2,843 225 4,611
At 1 January 2023, R2023FE181H
net of accumulated depreciation MBREFINE 1,543 2,843 225 4,611
Additions RE 309 413 10 732
Depreciation provided during the year ~— FERITE R (552) (347 (43) (942)
At 31 December 2023, 22023F12831H >
net of accumulated depreciation MERRHITE 1,300 2,909 192 4,401
31 December 2023: 2023F12831H :
Cost RAE 4,876 4,649 820 10,345
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (3,576) (1,740) (628) (5,944)
Net carrying amount IREFE 1,300 2,909 192 4,401

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (48)

31 December 2024
2024FE12831H

13. RIERIE

ENERLEREERREESHNT

13. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are

as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE
Withholding
taxes
FEIN®R
RMB’'000
ANEEFT
At 1 January 2023 #2023F1H1H =
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or FRPRIEFRINGAIEIERIE (Hf:39)
loss during the year (note 9) 1,265
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12023512831 H K%2024F181H 1,265
Deferred tax charged to the statement of profit or FERRBRERINREIIELERE (H:E9)
loss during the year (note 9) 976
At 31 December 2024 42024%F12831H 2,241

Deferred tax assets

Impairment of

financial

assets

MBEEERE

RMB’000

AEBTFT

At 1 January 2023 R2023F1H1H 2,235
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FEANt ABRRIIEILERIE (HF:59)

during the year (note 9) 961

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 12023F12H31 H 5&2024F1H1H 3,196
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FERFTABRRIGEIERE (f1559)

during the year (note 9) 1,855

At 31 December 2024 1420245F12H31H 5,051

RLZEBEERSERAT —TINFFR 127
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

13. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 13. IREMIE (B)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group
for financial reporting purposes:

UFRAERFMBREARNIEL
MIBAEER DA

2024 2023
20245 2023%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEEFT ANEEFT
Deferred tax assets recognised in RE B R RERN
the consolidated statement of RERIEE =
financial position 5,051 3,196
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in RE B R RERN
the consolidated statement of RERIEE R
financial position (2,241) (1,265)

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is 10% for the
Group.

In the opinion of the directors, who have absolute discretion in
determining whether to recommend a declaration of any dividend for
any period, and the amount of dividend to be paid of the Company, the
group will distribute to Shareholders no less than 25% of distributable
profits after the Listing.

At 31 December 2024, deferred tax of RMB2,241,000 (2023:
RMB1,265,000) has been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.

Other than the above deferred tax liability in relation to the PRC
withholding income tax provided, no deferred taxation has been
provided for the distributable retained profits of approximately
RMB221,733,000 (2023: RMB179,601,000), which were derived
from the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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R2024F 128318 > AEE L EH
PR 3 Y B B A B B AR AR TR AR Y
FEHERTIMENNFEINRERIEL
TRIE AR 2 241,0007T (20234 : A
E#£1,265,0007T) °
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13.

14.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following item:

13.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (48)

31 December 2024
2024FE12831H

BEIEMIA (48)

W R T PR B ERIEERIEE E -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Tax losses MIBEIE

6,902 1,126

The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

EREREAMEENRBBERE
—ELFREE FTARIEHEERR
] o AR F B RSB EIEIR A
BEE REATAAEAIHAIRE

losses can be utilised. BB R FE SRR R A] o
INVENTORIES 14. F8
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT NEBFT
Consumables HEEm 719 224

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES FEYs & 5 BR =X
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ANEETFT
Trade receivables R E ZIR™T 174,050 129,319
Impairment A (20,756) (12,785)
Net carrying amount EREFE 153,294 116,534

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management service
income. The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit and the credit period is generally between six months to
one year, except for new customers, where payment in advance in
normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management and credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
once a month. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition and net of
loss allowance for impairment, is as follows:

BUWEBEZRREEREYEEER
BRA -FERBRERNEZHERE
EnEE FEH-—RANERE—
EHMERBERERANMMR &
%@ﬂﬁ%%?ﬂ@%%%ﬁﬁl

WA EEEGEFT UBERIE
Eﬂ%om“ EEETHETRRR
BOUBRABEEERNEEEE -E
RERBERAR A EE R E ZIR™D
BRAEFTAER AR FERE
EhEERR - BWEZERRA T
Be

BERSHR REBWAESAHRL
TD R EBREERRNEWEZ IR
BRES DATU0E :

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ANEEFT

Within 6 months NEB A 71,555 64,591
Over 6 months and within 1 year BiENEAE—FER 28,601 25818
Over 1 year and within 2 years HBiE—FERERN 42,514 23,040
Over 2 years and within 3 years HBEmEE=FRN 10,624 3,085
Total 48t 153,294 116,534
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

5. EULE B AR (48)

EWE ZERRBEBREEED
mr

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ANEBTFT

At beginning of the year F4 12,785 8,939
Impairment losses recognised R ERE 7,971 3,846
At end of the year FR 20,756 12,785

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and service
type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group writes off trade receivables when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulties and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.; when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner, also taking into account legal
advice where appropriate.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

BRSNS ERRBERETHE
i Ut EREEBRE BEX
BEREFELUGEEREINZEEREF
DEERINE R HEE BlRER
RAUKRIRBRE) - ZEtERRIEAREK
MEER ERRERNEREEHA
BB EFM s BRI R AR R AL E R
MIBANGEKRAISEER

ERENEARSHFHENEREY
SR > B i S IBFERRUEIRT (f)
MRZHFHERBEBRACEARE
BF UREERE) » RERRK A
HEWEZRR TREEBERTE
BERER-

U85 BT ERENE Z IR
EREFHERRNEERRER

As at 31 December 2024 1220245F12831H
Past due
1to2 2to3 Over 3

Current years years years Total
4] 1226 2E3F fishekl: @
Expected credit loss rate BB EEREX 4.60% 13.64% 32.75% 100.00% 11.93%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE (ARETT) 104,987 49,228 15,797 4,038 174,050
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEERE ARETT) 4,831 6,714 5,173 4,038 20,756

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR 131



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

15. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15. FEUNE FERF (48)
As at 31 December 2023 1£2023%F12H31H
Past due
bk
1t02 2103 Over 3
Current years years years Total
=4] 1526 2E3E BiB3E st

Expected credit loss rate HREEREX 6.23% 15.57% 31.97% 100.00% 9.89%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) IREAE (ARETT) 96,419 27,290 4,535 1,075 129,319
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEERE ARETT) 6,010 4,250 1,450 1,075 12,785
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the business and customer KANBEZRA AEREBRER
risk portfolio of the Group remained stable and there were no BB GHEFEE BEREEBBIL
significant fluctuations in the historical credit loss incurred. In addition, BEES LI RIBHAIEME
there is no significant change with regard to economic indicators B ER Ml RBIE R mEBAREH) -
based on an assessment of forward-looking information. Therefore, At REEREHAN BHEERS
there is no significant change in the expected credit loss rates BRIWREARED-

throughout the reporting period.

16. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 16. FAfIRR - HtERIERE
OTHER ASSETS fthE =

2024 2023

20245 20235

RMB’000 RMB000

ARETFTT ARETT

Payments on behalf of customers to REA A BREHERN
utility suppliers ;I8 44,268 35,839
Other prepayments HMFET ™= 3,302 2,397
Deposits & 10,466 9,333
Advance to staff FERETIZHIE 4,800 4,848
Others HAth 1,466 1,346
64,302 53,763
Impairment (a) JHE(@) (2,700) =
Total 4Bt 61,602 53,763
(@) Included in the above provision for impairment of other (@ FR2024F12831H LitEAM
receivables was a full provision for individually impaired other EWHRENRERESES
receivables of RMB2,700,000, with a carrying amount before 18 B 5 B B E At FE IR IE B
provision of RMB2,700,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:Nil). 2 EEEE AR ¥2,700,0007T

HRBERMNEEEA AR
2,700,0007T (20234 : #E) o

132 Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
MIFIRRMIsE (&)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

16. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 16. FATR - HthBURIERH
OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) thEE (&
Financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and BERBMT EMEWREIE R EA
other assets are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on EENEREEAEBER TEX
demand. The financial assets included in the above balances relating BIREREIE - Ll AEsRPEE IR
to receivables were measured based on 12-month expected credit EARNTMEE MBS BRI
losses if there was no significant increase in their credit risk since REERBAREZIEM BRE12ME
initial recognition. Otherwise, they were measured based on lifetime BREAGEEBEEE -G8 HER
expected credit losses. BEHTEEEREIEsT R
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HmEWmERERBBEEEZISHN
receivables are as follows: S8
2024 2023
20245 2023%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

At beginning of year RER] - =
Impairment losses recognised BB ERE 2,700 =
At end of year REXR 2,700 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 17.

BANK DEPOSITS

RERPSZEYUREIE
pey

2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Cash and bank balances R& MIRTTAE R 137,178 177,306
Pledged deposits BIRRER 2,902 =
140,080 177,306
Less: Pledged deposits B BIRRER (2,902) =
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 137,178 177,306
Denominated in: MUTESHE
RMB AR 137,151 177,174
HKD BT 27 132
Total “ast 137,178 177,306

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited 2024 Annual Report
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18.

19.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

18. BT EHIRMK

BN EZERRNIREARZERAS
BHREDTINT

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABEFT ANEETFT

Within 3 months =X (EV=h 22,822 1,786
3 to 12 months =EZ+_@EAH 1,532 74
12 to 24 months +-E_+mEA 170 8
Over 24 months BiE—+ruEs 6 =
Total 485t 24,530 1,868

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled

on 90-day terms.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, the carrying amounts of trade

payables approximated to their fair values.

BB ZERRATEE  BEIZIOX

HARE R -

120235 F2024F 128318 > T &

ZERNIREEREAAEEBERS-

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 19. HthEMRIE - EWRER
ACCRUALS FEst &
2024 2023
20245 2023%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEBTFT
Receipts on behalf of community residents RtEERWERA BREE R
for utilities 10,026 11,478
Deposits received BlEE 19,232 19,086
Business tax and surcharges BERKRMINE 6,508 6,272
Payroll and welfare payable FE(S T B KB 18,419 6,461
Others Hih 3,248 5,547
Total “mst 57,433 48,844

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The
fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting period
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.

x

HAMFE A RIE R BIE R R AR ERE
B HMEMRBERREHARN AR
BELAERREERS-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. 2R E
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Contract liabilities HHEE 53,319 51,753
Current portion BRERZR (49,950) (51,753)
Non-current portion JERNHRER 3,369 =
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance AEBNGHNEBEDETERBUE
payments received from customers for services yet to be provided. ER AN RIE AT 8 R Be A A B AR
The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 December 2024 was mainly FomM2024F 12831 HMNEHNEER
due to the increase of advances received from customers in relation to Frig s EEZRP R ZERBEREF
the provision of property management services at the end of that year. BRAREY X EIERBRIIL 0P
o
The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of each ZIRSHRBEP U AN FERER
reporting period is as follows: IRk
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB 000

ARETFT ANERETT

Within 1 year —FR 50,972 51,753
Over 1 year Bl — 2,347 =
Total wst 53,319 51,753
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

SHARE CAPITAL 21. @&
2024 2023
20245 2023%
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,0008%& ABITHKS BITHKS
HK$0.01 each (i) FREE.01BTHIZER() 10,000,000 10,000,000
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEETFT
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
517,414,000 (2023: 517,414,000) 517,414,0008% (20234 :
ordinary shares 517,414,0000%) @M% 4,731 4,731
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows: KABIRASENB I T
Number of
shares in issue Share capital
BRITRHHUE [
HK$ RMB 000
Bir ARETFT
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 12202251811 ~ 20224
and 1 January 2023 12831H K%2023%F181H 1 = =
Capitalization issue (i B AR EE1T() 379,999,999 3,800,000 3,475
Initial public offering (i) B RA B2 (i) 126,668,000 1,266,680 1,158
Exercise of the over-allotment option (iv) 1T 1EHBER L AR 1 (V) 10,746,000 107,460 98
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 72023512831 H ~ 20245
and 31 December 2024 1818 %20245F12831H 517,414,000 5,174,140 4,731
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

21. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0)

(i)

(i)

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2020 with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided in 38,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each. On the date of the Company’s
incorporation, one ordinary share was allotted and issued to the initial
subscriber, an independent third party which was transferred to Zhong
An on the same day. On 3 December 2020, Zhong An transferred
one ordinary share to Zhong An Service Holding Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhong An, at nominal consideration. Upon
completion of such share transfer, the Company became wholly owned
by Zhong An Service Holding Limited.

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed on 19 April 2022, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by the creation of additional
962,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company
passed on 21 June 2023, a total of 379,999,999 shares of HK$0.01
each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on the date
of passing such resolution in proportion to their then existing respective
shareholdings in the Company, on a pro rata basis, and such shares
were allotted and issued by way of capitalisation of HK$3,800,000
(approximately RMB3,475,000) from the Company‘s capital reserve
account on the Listing Date.

On 18 August 2023, the Company issued 126,668,000 shares in its initial
public offering at the price of HK$1.18 per share (‘Listing Date”). The
proceeds of HK$1,266,680 (equivalent to RMB1,158,000) representing
the par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital. The
remaining proceeds of approximately HK$148,201,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB135,510,000) before listing expenses were credited to
the capital reserve account.

On 14 August 2023, 10,746,000 over-allotment ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$1.18 per share. The proceeds of HK$107,460
(equivalent to approximately RMB98,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$12,573,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB11,496,000) before listing expenses were credited to the capital
reserve account.

2024 Annual Report

21. 7k (@)

BsE -

0)

(i)

(i)

(v)

AATR2020FE11B16H R SE
ESEMAIL A MR A %380,00078
7T » 93 #338,000,0008% = P& E 150.01
BILHRMD - RAABFEMALILA
B ARNRBA (—RBIE=7)
Fosg 1T —RE@A > WHFEH
BT R L N2020F12830 ' &
TEIREERULEREESETR
ZNEREZENBLAERARZRE
ERAERAT - ROEETRE &
NEAHRERBEERERATDEZE
%A

RIFF 202248100 BENER
SRR @B 8 E%962,000,0008% i
19 A BEE B4 E1380,0007% 75
18 210,000,000 7T

RIBEARABRKENR2023F68
CIHBEBENEBRAZR &
379,999,999 & f£0.01 B T iR 15
EREERERETIRZRAERR
BEBERRIAATRRL M
ROEERBETLHARBREERS
BERAABNRERFRE M&ESE
BROBER LT HPRERBERR
5 ER# H13,800,0008 7T (W AR
3,475,0007t) MEARE AR ER
E{Te

2023588188 (TEH A »
EATUER1.18EBTHERE R
ARIEEE126,668,0008% B2 15 © FT18
181,266,680 7T (HHER AR
1,158,0007T) BERE BT ARRE
B 7S o 87 T FR1E 7R IE49148,201,000
B EER4 AR135,510,000
70) CRIOfFk LX) BEst ABE AR
HIRE -

2023F8H14H > 10,746,000%
BERETERCRER 188 T
BIE#S &5 1T o TS FRIE107,46078 7T
(FBE R4 AR K98,0007T) B#E
Bt ALRBIRA R TATERIA
#912,573,000/8 ¢ FEERHN AR
11,496,0007T) CGRiNkk EMRESR) B
STABREERS



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

22. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024 are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents additional contributions made by the
shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the Group is
required to allocate 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the statutory surplus funds until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.

Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations
and in the articles of association of these subsidiaries, the statutory
surplus funds may be used either to offset losses, or to be converted
to increase the share capital of the subsidiaries provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of them. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other than
those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash dividends.

A5 ER R MIsE ()
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2024%12831H

22, #E

B E2023F H2024F12B31B ILFE
rEBERBSEREEHNEHEDR
BERPZTo

AR (&

RAFEEEELBDWE AT RRIFL
BIZRIMNHE ©

EEHE

HRA5 AR B A B A Fe i 1 B Bl 3 BY Y /8
AEMEBERMR) AEBARHE
BREPEEENEENRENEF
BERI10% DI A EERFATESE
EEHBRAREINHEMEERI50%
ke

FHEBAPEERAZEWE A 4AE
BERMAFTEE TRHBRERT
FEEBRBAREALERBEE R
EREMNERBRE AR
MENERARONREZMELRRD
25% B NP RIERILB R ZIN
NEMAR TAERBEEREET

ke

REEREFERSARAT —FMFEFR

139



140

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Significant related party transactions

23. P 3Z5

(1) EXFEBERS

The Group had the following transactions with related parties ANE B H AR F E LR 5 T
during the year: THRZH
2024 2023
20245 2023%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBHEFT ANEEFT
Property management service REMBMAMESERBKA
income from related parties
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) (iii) 2~ B(i) (iif) 50,611 32,784
Joint ventures of companies controlled R4 IERE A T HEH| >
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) =R=31=() 65 78
Associates of companies controlled REERABESZ
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) B & A B() 158 36
Total 48t 50,834 32,898
Income from value-added services HKERBATEQEREE
mainly to property developers RHIZERFEUA
from related parties
Companies controlled by the Ultimate B4R A TIZHI >
Holding Company (i) iii) ~BE() (iii) 26,803 42,569
Joint ventures of companies controlled R ARIERS A BTS2~
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) BE () 1,626 4,492
Associates of companies controlled RIEERABIESIZ
by the Ultimate Holding Company (i) BiE& R E)() 1,319 4,994
Total s 29,748 52,055
Community value-added service RERMB S EEERERA
income from related parties
Companies controlled by the RRERABIESIZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) (iii) ~BE) (iii) 8,180 11,467
Rental expenses HEmX
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ
Ultimate Holding Company (i) NEl) 305 321
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1)

(2

Significant related party transactions
(Continued)

23. R
(1) EXRABARS (@)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

X5 (&)

Notes: st -

i) The prices for the above service fees were determined in (i) THRBEEELRESY
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the EHHEBWRE 2GR MG
contract parties. EE e

(ii) The Group has been licensed by the Zhong An and its (ii) FEEEERZRHARB AR
subsidiaries, excludes CNC and our Group, to use certain (FEEPEMM T RAE
trademarks for its operations on a non-exclusive, non-transferable E) ZELGEB R T o] E:E
and royalty-free basis for a perpetual term. RREREBEEXKAERE

FrRREEERR

@iy ~ The above related party transactions also constitute connected (i) EMMEAEARZINEMR LT
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in HASE14AZEFT R EMRIER
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. SRFERERS -

Outstanding balances with related parties (2) FAR S KREZEEREE

Amounts due from related parties: FEUL BB 5 =08 -

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Trade related: B8 -
Companies controlled by the REERABESZ

Ultimate Holding Company NC| 99,875 50,545
Associates of companies controlled REERABIESI 2

by the Ultimate Holding Company YN 2,807 2,849
Joint ventures of companies controlled R ARIERG A TSI~

by the Ultimate Holding Company HEdhzx 1,943 1,161
Total “ast 104,625 54,555

The trade related receivables from related parties arose
from the provision of property management services and
value-added services to the related parties. The receivables
amounting to RMB88,762,000 were aged within one year and
RMB15,863,000 were aged between one and two years as at
31 December 2024, based on the date of revenue recognition.
The receivables amounting to RMB54,555,000 were aged within
one year as at 31 December 2023.

x

FEUS B B 75 B9 B 5 M R Rk B 2k
BERE# AR YESER
R IBERTS  RIBW AR B
B> jA2024FE 128318 FEIR®X
15 A\ R #588,762,0007T M ER 5 24
—E 7R KM ARE15,863,000
TTHERES A — E M 122023
F12H31H ERFHIBARE
54,555,000t R A —F 2
I?CJO

ZEREERSARRAT —FMFEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 23.

(2) Outstanding balances with related parties
(Continued)

Trade related amounts due from related parties are with credit
terms of three month. The Group has assessed that the credit
risk of these receivables has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and measured the impairment of trade related
amounts due from related parties under the simplified approach
based on lifetime expected credit losses and has assessed that
the expected credit losses are not significant.

(3) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group,
which comprises the remuneration of the directors, is disclosed
in note 7.

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24,

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

Rl 5 (@)
(2) RAETS RIEZERER (B)

FE U e Bk 75 BY B 5 AR R RRIR (S
EfR=ER AEEETEZ
FRWRENEERR SV H
BESD S RRE IR AN > W BRI
EHZERBEEMAREERE
sTEREWRE S B 5 HME
BURE > BE ML TREIE SRR
WAEK

@ ERMEBERARH

AEETBERASHFH (2
EEEHH) ERMETRE-
MEERB SNSRI A

FHEEMTENSREPRNEREE
mr

142

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEBTFT
Financial assets — financial assets at SREE B HMRA
amortised cost FEEREE
Trade receivables (note 15) FEWE SRR (I5E15) 153,294 116,534
Financial assets included in prepayments, AN SR
deposits and other receivables HMEWRIENE/MEE 53,500 46,518
Due from related companies (note 23) FEUS B ESE A Bl 7 IE (MF5E23) 104,625 54,555
Pledged deposits (note 17) BIRRFER GEE17) 2,902 =
Cash and cash equivalents (note 17) RERREEEY W:E17) 137,178 177,306
Total 48t 451,499 394,913
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

25.

(CONTINUED)

24,

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

LB ERTA (8

2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEBTFT
Financial liabilities — financial liabilities at TRBE—IREENE
amortised cost FENTRAR
Trade payables (note 18) e B SRR (I5E18) 24,530 1,868
Financial liabilities included in other payables, & AEfFE A BEWizs
deposits received and accruals KRESTERTHNERERE 32,506 36,111
Total 48t 57,036 37,979

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, amounts due from
related companies, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and financial liabilities included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy

Other than above, the Group did not hold any financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

25.

THMIANAREBERAR

BERE

EEENGRERIREEEY B
B 28R BB R FEURRA B
ABRIA 5FATRMN R H MU
BEREMBEPNEREE  UKkE
AEMENR BRIREREER
THEREENANEEREREE
BE TEARZETANIIRER

DRABERE

Bx £ Rt Ih > 122024 F F220234F
128310 AER T EFAEAEZR
AEEFENEREEKRER-

REEBEERSERAT —FT_MFEEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

TS ERRMIEE (@)
31 December 2024
2024F12831H

26.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group has
other financial assets such as amounts due from related companies.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit
risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. To keep the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below:

(@) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, and amounts due from related
companies included in the consolidated statements of financial
position represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets as at 31 December 2023 and
2024. The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, such as instrument types
and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant
increases in credit risk and calculation of impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2023 and 2024, all cash and cash
equivalents were deposited in high-credit-quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk. These financial assets
were not yet past due and their credit exposure is classified as
stage 1.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

To manage the risk arising from trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made
only to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the Group’s
counterparties. The credit periods granted to the customers
are generally six months to one year and the credit quality of
these customers is assessed, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Group also has
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of trade receivables to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables and trade
related amounts due from related companies. The expected
credit losses also incorporate forward-looking information
based on key economic variables such as inflation rate. The
Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade related
amounts due from related companies is considered to be
low, since the related parties have a strong capacity to meet
contractual cash flow obligation in the near term. As at the end
of the reporting period, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets as well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement records
and past experience. The Group has classified financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets in
stage 1 if there was no significant increase in their credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, they were measured based
on lifetime expected credit losses. Management continuously
monitors their credit risk.

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

26. WEEGEEEHERESR
(48)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERAM (&)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRAK B D O B SR AR P ER

THRERNBBAEBREEBRS
HNEEEEREAEERRBIHK
M EFBERBEAPSE
BHMENABRTHARE
B A s S DRI AT ERE I E K
BIBRIN » LUK 7A20234F 2024
F12831 BN ERBEERDE PR
2IMSEASHME ENMAR
HERMBEERENEERR

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2024. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and
the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

Zhong An Intelligent Living Service Limited

B9 LB R
As at 31 December 2024 142024%512H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12(8 R FBHAfE
B 2HEBEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—TEE B MR it % st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARBEFT  ABEFT ARBEFT  ARETT
Trade receivables* B AR - - - 174,050 174,050
Financial assets included SABRMR Bt
in prepayments, TEREMEEN
other receivables and EHEE
other assets — Normal™ —E&" 53,500 - - - 53,500
- Doubtful —RER™ - - 2,700 - 2,700
Amounts due from related LN R
companies - - - 104,625 104,625
Pledged deposits- BEAESR-
Not yet past due EESEG 2,902 - - - 2,902
Cashand cash equivalents - BRERREZEY—
Not yet past due EESEG 137,178 - - - 137,178
Total a5t 193,580 - 2,700 278,675 474,955
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 26.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

MR EEEIERBUER
(&)

(a) EEER (&)

720235 12831H

12-month ECLs
1208 A BHE
B8
Stage 1 Stage 2
F—EE FRE

RMB000 RMB000
AERTT  AEETT

Lifetime ECLs
LHRBEERE
Simplified
Stage 3 approach Total
EREE #EA%E st

RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000
AERTT  AEETm  ARETx

Trade receivables* FE U & 7 BR A0 - - - 129,319 129,319
Financial assets included in SARMT Hftt

prepayments, i eREY A=Kl

other receivables and EENCHEE

other assets

- Normal** —[E&" 46,518 = = = 46,518
Amounts due from related Gl NE

companies - - - 54,555 54,555
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEEEY

— Not yet past due —ABH 177,306 - - - 177,306
Tota 83t 223,824 - - 183,874 407,698

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 35.8% (2023: 27.5%) of the
Group’s trade receivables and amounts due from related parties
were due from the Group’s largest customer.

* MAERREBEEERERBELS
FHEERBEZERKREZRRME
BRI MBI M 15K

o Bt AN HttEERER A
HEENEREETLRRAR ME
WHERARBTTHEEBS B RER
LERHEERBREBRZRMN  HiE
BEEERGAIER) - DR SRE
ENEEERBRA/ IR -

RREHBEERS ~AEBEFEE—T
HNEFEERK  AAEREREI5.8%
(20234 : 27.5%) HEWE 5 R
FEW R S RUIER B AREBMRANE
Fo
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A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 26. HFEEIGEEBERBE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (48)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FENEE R
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties mEBETRRIEAERRES
in meeting its financial obligations due to shortage of funds. ERmEUBRBTEMBEEN
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from BB AEREEBN RSB EER
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. BT ERBTMEEREER
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between RiGiC - REENERERIFE
continuity of funding to finance its working capital needs as well SEBEMLUMEEEEESSS
as capital expenditure. RERZ 7 B e
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RIBESHRMIRGR AEEE
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted REERREHARNTIEAE 8
payments, is as follows: R
Less than
3 months or 3to 12 1to 10
on demand months years Total
Lir3(E s
HEXER  3E128AR 1105 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARBEFT
31 December 2024 2024128318
Trade payables e B FIRM 22,822 1,532 176 24,530
Financial liabilities included in other & AELE(TFUIE
payables, deposits received and BlEhESTERN
accruals TRIBE 32,506 - - 32,506
Total 4Ect 55,328 1,532 176 57,036
31 December 2023 2023F12H31H
Trade payables e B SR 1,786 74 8 1,868
Financial liabilities included in other & AELFE(TUIE
payables, deposits received and e kBt ERN
accruals TREE 36,111 - - 36,111
Total W5t 37,897 74 8 37,979
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

A5 ER R MIsE ()

31 December 2024
2024%12831H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES BERGEEEERKE
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) =)
(c) Capital management (c) BEXEE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to rEEEABEENTIEZANE

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirement. No change was made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is total
current assets divided by total current liabilities, and a liabilities to
assets ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total assets. The
current ratios and liabilities to assets ratios at the end of each of
the reporting periods are as follows:

EREAEEENHFECSER
MR ESHERLE UFH
EGRERREERALL

AEBMEBHEARGERE  WiRE
RERTOEEMEMEEN

R HHE AR A4S
%Fﬂ%&éfztm% » Z<EE (B B BE A
BL A FREMNRE BB AR
EFRENBITHRD - AEE
5 7B 38 ST T A1 40 30 B 10 B9 A
ER o B E20244F 2023412
B1HIEEE  AEBMERE
AEENBZ BERREFEE
EAEE

REBLIRBLEX (RBEES
BFLURESEREBER REES
BEX (BEREKRUEER
) BEEANBER -NERE
HEARNRBLEXRREERR
EERY0T -

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABEFT ANE¥FiT

Total current assets TRENE E4EER 460,320 402,382

Total current liabilities 5ﬁ§]%ﬁ“ 1| 167,134 135,329

Total assets EEME 469,846 410,085

Total liabilities %ﬁ%géﬁ 170,503 135,329

Current ratio TRENEEE 2.75 2.97

Liabilities to assets ratio BEEBELE 0.36 0.33
27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 27. FBEEE

B E2024F K2023%F 12831 H » &
Bl EIAEANEEE-

As of 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.
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A5 ER R MIsE (B)

31 December 2024
2024F12831H

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 28.
COMPANY

RRBEMBRRE

BRARRBNRREARZHHRRE

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

150

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HNERWT :
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABEFT ANE¥FiT
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and cash equivalent REMIREEEY 27 132
Due from subsidiaries N YNCIEE 126,720 138,198
Due from related companies FEUL R B A B TR 15 =
Other receivables HhpE U aIs - 15
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS REBEEHEE 126,762 138,345
CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt B=RE
Due to subsidiaries FETHY B A BRI 10,436 10,436
Due to related companies &1 BB A Bl FRIA 6,853 2,745
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBREE 17,289 13,181
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE 109,473 125,164
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 109,473 125,164
NET ASSETS BEEEE 109,473 125,164
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent A F#HE AL
Share capital [N 4,731 4,731
Reserve (note) BB () 104,742 120,433
TOTAL EQUITY RS 109,473 125,164
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2024

2024FE12831H
28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 28. ZAFMBIRREK (B)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: izt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABVABERARMT -
Capital Retained
reserve Earnings Total
BAREE BEE #act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEMTFT ANEMFT AEBTFT
As at 31 December 2022 and 2022128310 &
1 January 2023 2023FE181H - (3,890) (3,890)
Loss for the year FREEE - (3,012) (3,012)
Issue of shares upon initial BARARMAEERETRE
public offering 143,531 - 143,531
Share issue expenses D EETRX (16,196) - (16,196)
As at 31 December 2023 and 722023FE12831H &
1 January 2024 2024%E181H 127,335 (6,902) 120,433
Loss for the year FAEE - (2,977) (2,977)
Dividend declared BEIRKE - (12,714) (12,714)
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%F12831H 127,335 (22,593) 104,742
29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 29. I[{REHABEIA
No significant events that required additional disclosure or adjustments IREHAKR B ML BIFEEIMNEED
occurred after the end of the reporting period. FHENWEAREIE
30. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30. HEAERFEIRER
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by B AR O 2025FE3H27THEESH
the board of directors on 27 March 2025. SHLE TSRS o
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Summary of Financial Information
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RESULTS e
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 20234 20224 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AREFR ARETFT ARETT AREFRT
Revenue KA 412,238 351,133 319,735 295,694 230,695
Profit before tax FRARAHE 52,730 69,315 68,260 56,510 63,193
Income Tax iz (15,389) (19,891) (17,325) (14,720) (16,144)
Profit for the year FRFE 37,341 49,424 50,935 41,790 47,049
Total comprehensive income UT G2 mEREAE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent BABERA 38,067 49,346 50,817 38,991 36,535
Non-controlling interests FERER (726) 78 118 2,799 10,514
37,3H 49,424 50,935 41,790 47,049
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE -BERIFERER
INTERESTS
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
20245 2023 2022 20215 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFR ARETFT ARETT AREBFRT
Total Assets BEE 469,846 410,085 198,032 140,666 259,505
Total liabilities waE (170,503) (135,329) (104,766) (98,335) (112,586)
Non-controlling interests R ER (1,121) (1,847) (1,769) (1,651) (28,835)
298,222 272,909 91,497 40,680 118,084
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